City of Crossville, Tennessee

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

June 30, 2005



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Organization Chart

Direclory of Public Officials
FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Managemaent's Discussion and Analysis

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-wide Financial Statements
Statemen! of Net Assals
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet--Governmenial Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances--Governmental Funds

Statement of Net Assets--Proprietary Fund

Siatement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Nel Assets--Proprietary Fund

Stalemenl of Cash Flows--Proprietary Fund
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

OTHER REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Funding Progress - Pension Plan

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Fund Balance--Budget to Actual

General Fund

Capital Projects Fung

Page No.

15

16

17

18-1¢

20

21
22

23 - 46

47

48 - 55



TABLE OF CONTENTS, continued

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules
Combining Balance Sheet--Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances--Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures end Changes in Fund
Fund Balance--Budget to Actua!

State Street Aid Fund
Solid Waste Managemen! Fund
' Dri Fund
UDAG Industrial Development Fund

Proprietary Fund
Statemenl of Nel Assets

Statemenl of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Net Assets--Budget to Actual

Statement of Cash Flows
Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable

Schedule of Debt Service Requirements
Governmental Activities

Business-Type Aclivities
Schedule ol Principal Officials and Surety Bonds
Schedule of Insurance Coverage

] Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assislance

STATISTICAL SECTION
Tax Rates and Assessments — Ten Year Summary

Ulilily Statistical Data

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
AND COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Page No.

57

58

60
61

62

63

64 - 65
66

67

68
69 - 71
72

73

75

76

77-78



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



a

WALV ELSVA
NOLLYLINYS

d31HD 20r10d

] |

|

T

I

LHANIAYS20
S3UNOSTY
TVanLIno
2 TANSHET

LRIV S3a
SHOINOSTA
R R

INININYIET
INILDVEINGD

INFMLEV4Ea

q413

LMNEINIEY 4T
H2I10d

L

1

|

——

BVOLVALSININGVY
S3CCT

EOLYULSININGY
NOLLVIAY

T

|

iy

1

HOLVELSINOINGY

dvd MOGVEN

LNEMACTE ARG
ALINAWINGD 2 DINONOTE
‘ONINNY I 20 301440

ﬂ.u.?dhmwzuza\wmzzoﬂmm
LNYLSISSY SALLNITLT

SINUNOSTE HYINNH
20 301440

NOLLYHLSINDNGAY

LIHVED (24 TO ALID

m

JRTID ALID
40 i3

HAOWVNYIN ALD _

LNIINNAINOO ALID ATTINSSOUD

HONWVYE JAILNDIIAXT - JANLINAULS LNIWIOVNVIN




Mayor

Mayaor Pro-Tci
Council Member
Council Member

Council Member

City Manager
City Clerk
Finance Director
City Attorney

Cily Judge

City of Crossville, Tennessee
DIRECTORY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

June 30, 2005

ELECTED OFFICIALS

APPOINTED QFFICIALS

J. H. Graham, 1l

Boyd Wyalt, Sr.
Carl Duer
Billy Logains

Earl Dean

Jack E. Milter, PhD
Sally Oglesby
Amanda Houslon
Kenneth Chadweli

Thomas L. Bean



FINANCIAL SECTION



PLEMMONS-JACKSON & ASSOCIATES, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Council Members
City of Crossville, Tennessee

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activilies, the
business-type aclivilies, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Cily of Crossville, Tennessee, as of and for the: yenr ended June 30, 2005, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Cily of Crossville, Tennessee's
managemenl. Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on these financial stalements based

on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United Stales of America and the standards applicable to financial audils contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Uniled Slates.
Those slandards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatemenl. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significani
estimates made by managemeni, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presenlation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal
respecls, the respeclive financial position of the governmsanlal aclivities, the business-lype
activities, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cily of
Crossville, Tennessee, as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended, in conformily with
accounling principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 3, the City has adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures, an

amendment of GASB Stalement No. 3, as of July 1, 2004.

In accordance with Government Audiling Standards, we have also issued our report daled
Oclober 19, 2005, on our consideration of the Cily of Crossville, Tennessee's internal control
over financial reporling and on our tesls of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracls, and grant agreements and olher matlers. The purpose of that report 1s
to describe the scope of our testing of iniernal control over linancial reporling and compliance
and the resulls of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal conirol over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral parl of an audit performed In
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accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
rasults of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, pension funding information, and budgetary
comparison information on pages 3 through 14, page 47, and pages 48 through 56 are not a
required part of the basic financial statemcnts but are supplementary information required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Becard. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
mcasurement and preseniation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audil the information and express no opinion on il.

Our audit was conducled for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial stalements thal
collectively comprise the Cily of Crossville, Tennessee basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial stalements, other
supplementary information, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are nolt a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of addilional analysis,
and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Cily of Crossuville,
Tennessee. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial slatemenls, the other
supplementary information, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been
subjecled to the auditing procedures applied in the audil of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, are fairly stated in all malerial respecls in relation o the basic financial
stalements taken as a whole. The infroductory section and stalistical tables have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,

accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
Plemmons-Jackso¥ & Associates, PLLC

Crossviile, Tennessee
Oclober 19, 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This discussion and analysis of the City of Crossville’s financial per(ormance provides an
overview of the City’s financial activilics for the fiscal ycar cnded June 30, 2005, Pleasc
rcad it in conjunction with the City’s linuncial stalements.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a scries of financial statements, The Stalement ol Nct
Assets and the Stalement of Activitics providc information about the activitics of the City
as a wholc and present a jonger-term view of the City's finances. Fund financial
statements for governmental activitics tell how thesc scrvices were financed in the short
term as wel) as what remains for futurc spending. Fund financial statements also report
the City’s operations in more detail than the government-widce statements by providing
information aboul the Cily’s most signiflicant funds.

Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activitics

The Statemcnt of Nect Assets and the Statement of Activitics veport information about the
City as a whole. They show whether or not the City’s financial condition is belter or
worsc as a result of the year’s activitics. Thesce stalements include all assets and
liabilitics using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used
by most privatc-scctor companies. All of the current ycar’s revenucs and expenses are
taken inlo account regardlcss of when cash is received or paid. Basically, the reporting
shows what was ecarned or owed at Junc 30.

These (wo statements rcport the City’s net assets and changes in them. Net asscts, or the
difference between assets and labilitics, are onc way to measure the Cily's financial
health. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are onc indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or dcleriorating. Other factors such as changes
in the Cily’s property tax basc, salcs tux collections, and road conditions, also measure

the overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Asscts and the Statement of Activitics, the City is divided into
two kinds of activilics:



1. Govermmenlal activities  Most of the City’s basic services arc reported
here, including the police, fire, general administration, strects, and lcisure
and cultural activitics. Sales taxes, stale-sharcd taxcs, franchise fees,
fines, and property laxes finance most of these activitics.

2. Business-lype activitics -The City charges a fee to customors to help it
cover all or most of the cost of certain scrvices it provides. The Cily’s
waler and scwor sysicm 1s reported here.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant l‘'unds

Fund Financial Statements

The fund Mrancial statements provide detailed information about the most significant
tunds, not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law
and by bond covenants. The City Council establishcs many other funds to help it control
and manage moncey for particular purposcs, like the Industrial Development [Fund. Other
funds show that the City is meeting legal responsibilitics for using certain taxes, grants,
and olher money, ke the Drug Fund and State Strect Aid Fund. The City’s two kinds of
funds, governmental and proprictary, usce different accounting methods.

> Governmental funds -—Most of the City’s basic scrvices are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how moncy flows into and out of those
funds. The balances left at the cnd of the year are available for the next year’s
spending. These funds are reporied using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting, which measurcs cash and all other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmiental fund
statements provide a detailed shorl-tcrm view of the City’s gencral
government operations and the basic servicces it provides. Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there arc more or less financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.
The differcnee between govemmental aclivities (reported in the Statcmenl( of
Net Assels and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is shown
in a reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financial statcments.

> Proprietary funds  When the Cily charges customers for the services it
provides  whether to outside customers or to other units of (he Cily--tiese
scrvices are generally reported in proprictary {funds. Propriclary funds ace
reported in the same way that all activitics arc reported in the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activitics. The City’s enterprise fund is the same
as the business-type activitics repocted in the government-wide statements but
with morc information such as cash flows.



THE CITY AS A WHOLFE

For the year ended June 30, 2005, nct asscts changed as follows:

Governmental Activities

NET
ASSETS

Business-Type Aclivities

_Total Government

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Current and other assets 15,831,325 13,402,013 7,721.407 7.345,996 23,552,732 20,748,009
Capilal assels 23,466,279 21,214,271 39,352,781 39,836,900 62,819,060 61,051,171
Total assels 39,297,604 34,616,284 47,074,188 47,182,896 86,371,792 81,799,180
Other liabilibes 2,875,180 2,980,606 424,740 502,884 3,299,920 3,483,490
Long-lenm liabilities outstanding 1,285,745 206,765 17,686,040 18,887,717 18,971,785 19,184,482
Total liabilities 4,160,925 3,277,371 _ 18,110,780 19,390,601 22,271,705 22,667,972
Nel assels:
Invesiment in capital assets, net of
related debt  23.366,279 21,089,271 21,666,741 20,948,183 45,033,020 42,038,454
Resliicted - - 617,639 817,307 617,639 617,307
Unreslricted 11,770,400 10,249,642 6,679,028 6€,225805 18448428 16,475,447
Total nel assels (deficit) 35,136,679 31,338,913 28,963,408 27,792,295 64,100,087 59,131,208

By far, the largest portion of the City’s net assets (70%) reflects is jnvestment in capital
asscis (e.g. land, buildings, utility plant, machincry, cquipment, and infrastructure), net of
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is slill outstanding. The City uscs thesc
asscls (o providc services to cilizens; conscquently, these assels are not available for
futurc spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assels is reported net of
rclated debt, it should be noled that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themsclves cannot be used lo

liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s ncl asscls (1%) represents resources that are subject to
extemal restriction on how they may be used. The remaining unrestricted net assets of
$18,449,428 may be nsed to meet the City’s ongoing obligations 1o citizens and credilors.
Of the unrestricled net asscts, $6.7 Million 1s attributable 1o busincss-type activities and
$11.7 Million is attributed to governmental activities. The governmental aclivitics do not
have any restnicted net assets, primarily duc to the minimal debt, which is a solc interest

frec capital outlay note.



CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES
Program revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and contribulions
Capiltal grants and conlribulions
General revenues:

Taxes:

Properly iaxes

Local cptions sales tax

Siate shared laxes

Qlher taxes

Unrestncled investment earnings
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assels

Total revenues

EXPENSES
Governmenlal aclivities:

General govemment
Public safely
Highways and slreets
Sanitalion

Leisare and culiure
Airport

Industrial development
Tourism development
Cemeteries

Intercsl on long-term debt
Bus.ness-type aclivilies:

Waler and sewer

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) before special item and
transfers

(mpairmenl los= on watler plant

Transfers in (out)

Increase (decrease) in net assets

Govemmental Activities

Business-Type Aclivities

Total Government

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
3,268,815 991,130 6,030,440 5,454,495 9,299,255 5,445,625
635,254 44,327 - - 535,204 44 327
72,990 95,104 520,714 1,145,082 593,704 1,240.186
1,682,179 1,750,136 - - 1,682,179 1,750,136
6.273.545 5,947 565 - - 6,273,945 5,947 565
755,981 1,029,124 - - 755,981 1,029,124
1,096,342 1,024,713 - - 1,096,342 1,024,713
203.954 106,272 153.088 69,153 357,042 175,425
(5,282) 195,143 - (5,282) 195,143

13,983,778 11,183,514 6,704,242 6,668,730 20,688,020 17,852,244
3,047,71% 2,409,923 - - 3,047,111 2,409,923
3,973,535 3,854,000 - - 3,973,535 3,854,000
1,421,950 1,238,765 - - 1,421,950 1,238,765
334,538 205, iy - - 334,638 295,939
1,015,666 969,148 - - 1,015,666 969,148
172.048 170,938 - - 172,048 170,938
15,411 RIS - - 15,411 9,978

72,284 -

26227 86,328 - - 26.227 86,328
13,008 26,850 - - 13,008 26,850
- - 5,477,863 5022271 5477,863 5,022,271

_10,091.778 9,061,920 5477863 5022271 15569641 14,084,200
3,892,000 2,121,585 1,226,379 1,646,459 5,118,379 3,768,044
- (1.063.297) - (1,063,297)
55,265 48,542 (55,266) (48,542) -
3,047,266 2,170,127 1,171,113 534,620 5,118,378 2,704,747

6



Governmental Activities

In comparison to last year, revenues for the City’s govenunenial activities incrcased 25%
while total cxpenses increascd 11.3%. The street and leisure and cultural depariments
had the biggest increasc in expenscs, compared 10 last year, due to capttal outlay.
Propcrty (ax revenues decrcased 4%; however, local sales tax collections incrcased 5%
ovcer the previous year, with some months of record high collections.  Butilding permits
almost doubled in collection, with all permits and hicenses increasing 68%, which proves
the significanl growth in the arca.

Additiona) information may be needed (o understand the Statement of Activities. The
format is significantly different {rom a typical Statement of Revenuces, Expenscs, and
Changces in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column
with revenucs from that particular program reported (o the right. The result is a Net
(Expensc)/Revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to mghhight the relative
tinancial burden of cach of the functions on the City’s taxpayers. [t also identifics how
much cach function draws from the gencral xevenues or il it is sell-Mnancing through (ees
and grants. Some of the individual line itcm revemues and departments reported for
major functions acc:

Public salely Revenues include Federal grants for vests, State educalion
grants, TEMA disaster relief grants, State operating grants, and
cily court fines. Departmental expensces include police, fire,
auxihary police, public salety building, animal control, Diug
Fund, and Block Grant Fund.

General government Revenucs include licenses and permts, (ranchise fees, intcres!
earnings, sale of property, GIS contributions. public works
(ransfcrs from the watcr and scwer fund to share costs, and
imsurance recoveries, Departmental expenses include
administrative costs, City Hall, central staff, city court,
lcgislative, codes adminjstration, public works building,
maintenance department, (ree board, coginccring, and planning
and zoning.

Tourism Revenues include procecds and sponsorships fov Jocal and
regional golf tournaments. Department expenscs include
advertisements, travel guides, tourism video, maps, Chamber
of Commerce publications, and golf tournament sponsorships
promoting thc City of Crossville as the Golf Capitol of
Tennessce.



Cemctery

Leisurc and culwural

rcsourccs

Strects

Alrport

Industrial devclopment

Sanitation

Revenues arc from the sale of cemctery lols in the Crossville
City Cemetery. Expenscs arc for labor, equipment, and
materials in maintaining the grounds.

Revenucs include concessions stand operations, ourmament
fees, Palace Theatre souvenirs, Meadow Park Lake fishing
derby sponsors, Palace Theatre donalions, Statc Arts
Commission grants, and private donaitions for the construction
of the horscshoc pit arca. Departimental expenses include
opcrations of the Centennial Park, Garrison Park, Meadow
Park Lake, and the Palace Theatre.

Includes all strect operations. During the last fiscal year, the
Street Departmenl( received revenue rom servicing
Cumberland County's traffic signals.

Revenues include State grants for maintenance, IFBO operating
revenue, hangar rentals, and miscellaneous revenues lor FAA
rent, charts, and maps.

Revenues include a State TIIP Grant, contributions from
Granitifiandre/Stone Peak Ceramics, and interest carnings on
specially designated funds. The original source of revenuc was
a UDAG Grant (or industrial development.

Revenues include refuse disposal charges and salc of garbage
container. The General Fund transfers money for all other
opcrations.



All other governmental revenues are reported as general. [t is important to note that all
taxcs, cxcept for business taxes and licenses and state shared gasoline taxcs, arc classified

as general revenne even if restricted for a specific purposc. The following graph

summarizes revenues for the governmenta) activities.

Revenues from Governmental Activities 7/1/04-6/30/05
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Business-Type Activities

Revenuces of the City’s business-type activitics increased by $35,512, which s less
than 1%. The main reason for the slight overall increase is connécted (o prior ycar
grant revenues; however, some of the other operational revenues incrcascd by more
percenlages. Expenses decreased 9%, mainly duc to last ycar’s impairment loss for
the deercased valuc of the former Mcadow Park Lake Plant. Other factors driving

these results include:

e In 2004, the City received over $1.1 Million in outside grants and contributions
for water and scwer lincs. In comparison, the fund recctved $520,714 in valuc of

contributed waler and sewer lines during the current year.

¢ Interest carnings more than doubled, with only $69,153 carncd tn 2004 and

$153,088 in 2005.

e Watcr (ap [ces increased 95%, up lo $135,]104 in 2005 from $69,200 in 2004.

This was due o some large new commerccial and residential developments.

e Scwer service charges increased 6% and water sales incrcascd 7% over the prior

ycar.

» Depreciation expense for waler asscts increascd by over $146,000 due to the

completion of the large capital projects.

o Interest expense increascd over $87,000 due to loan payments conneeted o

complcied projeets.



e The City managed the Catoosa Utilily District between April 1, 2005-June 30,
2005. This resulted in $100,664 in management revenuces and $154,560 in
expenses.

The following graph summarizes the revenue sources for the business-type activities.

! Revenue from Business-Type Activities 7/1/04-6/30/05
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THE CITY’S FUNDS

At the close of the City’s fiscal year on June 30, 2005, the governmental funds of the City
reported a combined fund balance of $11,898,155. This ending balance includes an
increase 1n fund balance of $1,736,823 in the City’s General Fund. In addition, these
other changes in fund balances should be notcd:

e The City rcceived $282,910 in State of Tennessce Street Aid funding and only
spent $201,829. This ultimatcly led to an incrcasc in the fund balance of $81,081,
which lcft an ending fund balance of $566,776.

e The Industrial Development Fund decreased $326,163, with an ending balance of
$423,328. "I'he main reason for the decrease is related (o a repurchase of a spec
building in the industrial park.

General Fund Budgetary Higlhlights

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the City budget scveral times. The
stgnificant amendments can be catcgorized as follows:

. Emcrgency innature  The former train depot meeting room suffered damage
from a firc. A policc vehicle was stolen and burned beyond repair. As a result off
hoth incidents, the budget was amended 1o cover the repairs and/or replacement
and insurance reimburscment.



0.

Grant projccls -The airport reccived a state granl (or airport hangars. The budget
was amended to accept the grant. The City amended the budget to donale the
water and sewer infrastructurc construction costs to the Cumbertand County
Youth Center’s gymnasium. The City rcecived a private donation (0 cover the
cost of a new horscshoe pit area at the Cenlennial Park.

Inereases 1o prevent budget overrun—Worker’s compensation, property, and
liability insurance was higher than the amount originally budgeted. The insurance
company pool is adjusted every three years for the State of Tennessce, which 1s
the main rcason for the increasc. ‘The City’s staffing nceds required the
conversion of a part-timc computer information tcchnology ecmployec 1o full-lime
status. As a result of the additional wage hours, the budget had to be amended.
The City’s bid results for the handicapped playground werce larger than the
original budgcted muount. T'he budget was amended to cover the additional,
unexpected costs.

Carryover-A few budget items from 6/30/04 liscal year end were not uscd, and
the appropriations were funded in the 6/30/05 fiscal ycar through a budget
amendment. The construction of a salt storage building, rcercation department
cquipment, and remaining airport corporate sponsor funds were carried over mto
the 6/30/05 fiscal year.

Crcation of the Tourism Devclopment Department-During the ycar, the City
decided (o organize its tourism efforts into one centralized department. Most of
the funds werce alrcady budgeted in administration and recreation departments.
Budgcted funds were moved between the existing departments 1o create (he new
Tourism Devclopment Departiment. The City also updated its tourism video, and
funds were not originally inchided in the 6/30/05 budget for the update.
Opcrating/managcrial agrecmen( wilh the Catoosa Utility District-The City
entered inlo an operating agreement which was the first step in an cventual
merger between the City of Crossville and Catoosa Utility District. The
enterprise fund budget was amended to cover the revenues and expenscs
conncected (o the managerial agreement.

Even with these adjustments, the actual charges 1o expenditurcs were $1.8 Million below
the final budget amounts for the General Fund and $835,761 Million below final budget
amounts for the Watcr and Sewer Enterprisc IFund. The most significant favorable
variances occurred in the General Fund’s transfer to Capilal Projects ($616,576), Sticet
Department ($207,728), and the Municipal Airport ($179,380). Street tralfic signal and

lighting projccts were not completed by 6/30/0S, and the expenses were carried over into

the following year’s budget. The airport is in the process of obtaining grant {funding thal
will also be expensed in futnre years. The enterprise fund’s inlerest expense was
significantly less than budgel due o vanable rates that werc lower than the budget, and
depreciation expensc was also lowcer than ornginally budgeled due (o a later project

complclion time.

On (he other hand, actual revenues were $228,734 above the hnal budpcted amount in the
General Fund, mainly duc to interest earnings, building permits, and local sales tax
increascs. ‘The budgeled operaling revenues and expenscs were consistent with that of

[l



prior years, with expenses being well below the budgeted figures. As noled above,
revenue budgels were conservative in comparison to aclual receipls which also led (o
increased fund balancc.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Asscts

As of 6/30/20035, the City had $62.8 million invested in a broad range of capital assets,
including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilitics, roads, water and scwer
lines. This represents a nel increasc (including additions and deductions) of 2.9% over
Jast year.

Capital Assets at Year-Enad

(In Millions)
Governmental Business-Type
Aclivities Activities Totals

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Land 2.45 2.25 0.28 0.29 2.75 2.54
Water and Sewer Treatment
and Oistribulion Plant - - 54.54  53.84 54.54 53.84
Buildings & Improvements 12.93 12.34 - - 12.93 12.34
Machinery & Equipment 4.33 4.33 2.60 2.47 6.93 6.80
Infrastruclure 12.10 9.95 - - 12.10 9.95
Construction In Progress 0.16 0.05 0.88 0.64 1.04 0.68
Less Accumulaled
Depreciation (8.50) (7.69) (18.97) (17.41) (27.47) (25.10)
Nel 2347 2121 3935 39.84 6282  61.05

This ycar’s major additions include over $2.1 Million for strecl infrastruciure, mostly
through developers’ contributions, annexations, and some completed projccts through the
Tennessee Department of Transportation. For the business-typce aclivities, over $700,000
was addcd lor water and sewer lines, scveral of which were donated by developers as
well. A new projcct, the raising of the Meadow Park Lakc Dam, also added over
$400,000 to construction in progrcss.



Debt
At year-ond, the City had $18.97 Million 1n bonds and notcs outstanding versus §19.1

Million last year a decrcasc of | % as shown below.

Outstanding Debt at Year-End

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

General obligation
bonds (backed by
the City) 307,745 296,765 5,361,970 5866,270 5,669,715 6,163,035
Revenue bonds and
notes (backed by

specific tax and fee

revenues) 978,000 - 12,324070 13021,447 13,302,070 13,021,447
Totals 1,286,745 296,765 17,686,040 18,887,717 18,971,785 19,184,482

New debt of $138,201 resulted from finishing the construction of the Mcadow Park Lakc
Water Plant and thc Southcrn Distribution Watcr Line from Mcadow Park Lake to the
Homeslcad area in the business-lype activities. In the governmental activities, the City of
Crossville took out a $1 Million loan from the Tennessce Municipal Bond Fund on behalf
of the Cumberland Counly E-911. An inierlocal agreement was signcd between the Cily
of Crossville, Cumberland County, and Cumberland County E-911, which obligalcs the
Cumbcrland County E-911 to repay the debt. This agreement is reflected in the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets as outstanding debt to the Tennessec
Municipal Bond Fund and as a reccivable from Cumberland County E-911.

During (he year, the City of Crossville reccived an updaled bowd rating. Moody’s
[nvestors Scrvice upgraded the City’s bond rating to A3 from Baal. According to
Moody’s, the “upgrade lo A3 is based on the cily’s strong financial position,
characterized by strong reserves, a doubling of its property values over the past ten years,
significant population gains and improving wealth Jevels.”

'The City also approved the cstablishment of a public building authority which was uscd
to refinance debt of the Catoosa Utility District in order (o facilitate the merger with the
district as wel) as aid future quahlying entities.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The new General Fund Budget effective July 1, 2005 maintained the same tax ratc as the
fiscal year ended Junc 30, 200S. Sincc the lasl sales tax increasc in 1999, the City has
had an average growlh rate, excluding the rate increasc, of 16% in comparison 10 the
1998 levcl of sales. This sales tax trend has prevented property tax rate increascs. I'or
the sccond year in a row, the Stale of Tennessee also restored some of the past tax cuts,
by ruising state shared taxes overall by approximately 5%. This restoration of taxes will
bring approximatcly $47,055 more in revenue from the State of Tennessce anmually.
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Somc of the significant capital asset ilems budgeted for next ycar include $325,000 (or
improvements to the Public Safety Building, $200,000 for five fully-equipped police
vehicles, $378,000 for a fully-equippced fire engine, $450,000 for the Tulip Drive
Extension, $400,000 for the Holiday Hills bridge repair, and $667,000 on other street
rclaled capilal projects. Grants and specially designated state funding will offsct some of
thesc large expenses.

As mentioned above the Crossville Water and Sewer Fund s preparing for a merger with
the Catoosa Ulility District. I'he City of Crossvillc is merging by annexation of water
territory and infrastructure of the Catoosa Ulility District, cffcclive October 1, 2005, The
City will absorb all of the District’s cmployccs, assets, debt, and over 3,800 customers.
As a resull of the merger, the former Catoosa customers will experience rate savings and
the City of Crossville will absorb over $4.8 Myllion in Net Assets. All of the existing and
newly merged City customer waler rates arc budgeted for the same rales as the previous
(iscal ycar. Major capital additions planved for this fund arc: $436,000 for Water Tank
Hill and Miller Avenuc walerline rehabilitation, $600,000 for the Holiday Hills Dam
Overflow corrcction, $770,000 for raising the dam at Mcadow Park Lake and $400.000
for wastewater improvements. Loans and grants from statc and federal agencies, as well
as savings, will fund construction costs. Sonic o[ these projects will be finished within
the fiscal year while others will progress into the nex! few fiscal years.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report i1s designed to provide cilizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors
with a gencral overview of the City’s finances and to show (he City’s integrity and
accounlability. Tt you have questions about thesc financial statements or need additional
information, conlact thc Finance Deopartment at 99 Municipal Avenue, Crossvillc,

Tennesscc.
IEA Dz, %Wé L s
ack E. Miller, PHD Amanda Dodson Houston, CPA
Cily Manager Finance Director
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2005

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Invesiments
Receivables (nel)
Inventories
Deferred financing costs
Restricted cash and cash equivalenls
Capital assets
Land & construclicn i progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Tolal capital assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounis payable & accrued expenses
Deterred revenue
Long-term liablilities
Due within one year
Cue in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, nel of relaled debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

The notes o {he basic financial slatemenls are an integral part of this slalemenl.
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Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type

Aclivities Activities Total
$ 10,988,748 $ 6,067,704 $ 17,056,452
o} 421,738 421,738
4,673,734 807,510 5,481,244
110,551 163,912 274,463
0 45,070 45,070
58,292 215,473 273,765
2,296,901 1,176,209 3,473,110
21,169,378 _ 38,176,572 59,345,950
23,466,279 39,352,781 62,819,060
39,297,604 47,074,188 86,371,792
1,170,461 424,740 1,595,201
1,704,719 0 1,704,719
64,000 1,365,484 1,429,484
1,221,745 16,320,556 17,542,301
4,160,925 18,110,780 22,271,705
23,366,279 21,666,741 45,033,020
0 617,639 617,639
11,770,400 6,679,028 18,449,428
$ 35136679 § 28963,408 $ 64,100,087






Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

The notes 1o the basic financial slatements are an integral part of this statement.
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Capital
Grants and Governmental Business-type
Contributions Activities Activities Total
0 3 (49,890) $ 0 $ {49,890)
0 (3,764,340) 0 (3,764.340)
0 (1,110,050) 0 (1,110,050)
0 {334,538) 0 (334,538)
0 (836,3906) 0 (836,396)
0 (86,780) 0 (86,780)
/2,990 153,820 0 153,820
0 (72.284) 0 (72.284)
0 (1,253) 0 (1,253)
0 (13008  _ 0 (13,008)
72,990 _ (6,114,719) o 0 (6,114,719)
520,714 0 1,073,291 1,073,291
520,714 0 1,073,291 1,073,291
$__ 593704
1,682,179 0 1,682,179
6,273,545 0 6,273,545
755,981 0 755,981
457,685 0 457,685
487,987 0 487,987
150,670 0 150,670
203,954 153,088 357,042
(5.282) (5.282)
55,266 _ (55,286) -
10,061,985 97.822 10,159,807
3,947,266 1,171,113 5,118,379
31,338,913 27,792,295 59,131,208
(149,500) 0 (149,500)
$ 35136679 $ 26,963,408 $ 64,100,087



Fund Financial Statements



City of Crossville, Tennessee
BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2005

Capital Other Total
Prgects Governmental  Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash S 9,363,021 § 795,830 § 829897 $  10,988,74¢
Cash - resftricted 19,917 0 38,375 58,292
Recelivables, net of allowance for uncoliectible
Property taxes 1,720,144 0 0 1,720,144
Accounts 96,398 0 96,241 192,639
Grants 247 511 0 72,990 320,501
Noles 4,685 0 0 4,685
Due from other governments 1,410,775 0 46,990 1,457,765
Inventories 109,577 0 974 110,551
TOTAL ASSETS $ 12,972,028 $ 795830 § 1,085467 $ 14,853,325
LIABILITIES & FUND BALLANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 285,186 $ 795830 $ 5.792 1,066,808
Cuslomer deposits 440 0 0 440
Accrued expenses 103,213 0 0 103,213
Deferred tax revennes 1,784,709 0 0O 1,784,709
Total liabilities 2,153,548 795,830 5,792 2,955,170
Fund balances
Unreserved 10,818,480 0 0 10,818,480
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor
Special revenue funds _ 0 R 1,079,675 1,079,675
Total fund balances 10,818,480 0 1,079,675 11,898,155

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES ~ § 12,972,028 $ 795830 $ 1,085,467

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capilal assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and

therefore are nol reported in the funds. 23,466,279
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expendilures

and therefore are deferred in the funds. 1,057,980
Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the

current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. ~(1,285,745)

Net assets of governmental activilies $ 35,136,679

The notes {o the basic financial stalements are an integral part of this statemenl.
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REVENUE
Local taxes
Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental revenue

Interest income
Fines and forfeits
Charges and services

Public enlerprise revenue

Grants
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government
Public safety
Streel
Sanitation
Leisure and culture
Airporl(

Industrial development

Tourism development
Cemeteries

Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest charges

Capital outlay - facilities acquisition

and construction
Total expendilures

City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) REVENUE OVER

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)

Total other financial sources (uses)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) REVENUE & OTHER
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

Prior period adjustment

FUND BALANCES, end of year

Capital Olher Total
Projects Governmental  Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds
$ 9021075 § 0 8 0 $ 9021075
229,755 0 4] 229,755
777,578 0] 272,303 1,049,881
183,240 0 20,714 203,954
128,601 0 17,704 146,305
224,751 0 96,241 320,992
0 0 36,750 36,750
328,346 0 72,990 401,338
31,900 0 0 31,900
361,499 0 250 361,749
11,286,745 0 516,952 11,803,697
2,926,610 0 0 2,926,610
3,909,701 0 23,332 3,933,033
1,005,248 0 172,105 1,177,353
0 0 333,043 333,043
956,244 0 0 956,244
70,641 0 0 70,641
0 0 6,937 6.937
72.284 0 0 72,284
42,511 0 0 42,511
47,000 0 0 47,000
13,008 0 13.008 26,016
_ 0 78424 526627 ___ 605051
9043247 78424 1075062 _ 10,196,723
2,243,498 (78,424) (558,100) 1,606,974
76,544 78,424 334,017 488,985
. (433719) 0 0 (433,719)
(357,175) 78,424 334,017 55,266
1,886,323 0 (224,083) 1,662,240
9,081,657 0 1,290,741 10,372,408
~ (149,500) 0 0 (149,500)
10,818,480 § 0 $§ 1,066,668_ 3 11,885,148

$

The notes 1o lhe basic linancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES--TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 1.675,247

Governmental funds report capital outlays as axpenditures, However in
the statement of activities the cosl of thosc assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which c-ipital cutlays ($1,137.205) exceeded

depreciation ($1,056,287) in lhe current period. 80.918
The nel effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital

assels (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donalions) is to increase net assets. 2,171.080
Revenues in the statement of aclivities that do nol provide current

financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 1,008,991

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term labilitics in the slatement of net
assets. Repaymeni of bond principal is an expenditure in the

governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term linbiitics
in the statemenl of net asscts. This is the amouni by which proceeds
exceeded repayments. {953,000)

Some expenses reported in the slatement of activibes do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reporled as

expendilures in governmenlal funas. _ (35,980)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 3,947,266
The notes o the basic financial slatements are an integral part of this slatement
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2005

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtlul accotin's

Inventories of materiais
Tolal current assets
Noncurrent assets

Restricted cash

Capital assets
Land
Plant in service
Construction in progress
Machingcry and equipment
| ess accumu ated depreciation
Deferred financing cost
Special assessment receivable

Total other assets

Tolal assels

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounls payatle
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of notles/bond payable
Total current haoilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Noles and bonds payable, less current portion
Total noncurrent liabilities

Tolal liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invasted in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricled for debt service
Unrestricted
Tolal net assets

Enterprise Funds

_Water & Sewer

$ 6,067,704
421,738
789,324
163,912

7,442,678

216,473

294,010
53,655,208
882,199
3,491,262

(18,96¢,988)
45,070
18,186
39,631,510
47,074,188

332,134
92,606
1,365,484

1,790,224

16,320,556
15,320,556
18,110,780

21,666,741
617,639
6,679,028

$ 28,963,408

The noles to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statemenl.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Enterprise Funds

_ Water & Sewer

OPERATING REVENUE

Charges for services $

Total operating revenue

_ 6,030,440
6,030,440

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Repair and maintenance
Malerials and supplies
Contractual services
Other

1,275,146
61.246
393,393
1,490,140
118,193

1,650,543

Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

4,988,661

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest expense

1,041,779

(489,202)
153,088

Interest income
Tolal nonoperating revenue (expenses)

(336,114)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER REVENUES, SPECIAL ITEMS
AND TRANSFERS
Conftributions in aid of construction
Nel transfers

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Total Net Assets--beginning of year oo S

Total Net Assets--end of year $

705,665
520,714

~ (55,266)

1,171,113

27.792,295

28,963,408

The noles to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this staterment.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Paymenls lo employees
Other receipls (payments)
Net cash provided by operaling aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital debl
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Purchases of capital assets
Contributions in aid of construction

Olher receipts (payments)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and financing aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating transfer to General Fund, net
Nel cash (used) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on invesiments

Nel cash provided (used) by invest ng activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, beginning of year

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
by operaling activilies:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities
Receivables, net
(nventories
Accounts and other payables
Accrued expenses
Nel cash provided by operating aclivilies

Enferprise Funds

Water & Sewer

3 6,012,861
(2,150,794)
(1,275,146)

(87,033)
2,499,888

138,201
(1,339,877)
(489.202)
(1,079,321)
520,714
19,170

(2.230,385)

— (95,266)
(55,266)

153,088
153,088

367,325

5,915,852

$ 6,283,177

$ 1,041,779

1,663,510

(17,579)

(9.678)

(98,8186)

20,672

3 2,499 888

The noles to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY AND REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Crossville (the “City") is @ munic pal corporation, incorporated under the laws of the
State of Tennessee in 1901. The Cily is organized as 2 Mayor/Council form of government. The
Mayor and Council are elecled lo four-year terms. The Council appoints the Cily Manager, other
positions of management are appointed by the City Manager.

Reporting Entity

A reporting enlily consists of the primary government, component units, and other organizations
that are included to ensure that financial statemenls are nol misleading. The primary government
of the City consists of all funds, depariments, boards, and agencies that are not legally separate
from the City. For the City of Crossville, this includes various services including police and fire
protection, animal control, recreation (including parks, Meadow Park Lake, and the Palacc
Theatre), planning and 7oning, streel maintenance and repair, sanilation, water and sewer
services, and general administrative services. The opearalion of each of (hese aclivities is direclly

conlrolled by Council through the budgelary process.

Component units are legally separate organizalions for which the Cily is financially accountable.
The City has no component units.

Related Organizations

The City’s officials are responsible for appoiniing the members of the boards of other
organizations, but the City's accountability for these organizalions does not extend beyond the

appointments.

The following are related organizations, which have not been included in the reporling entily:

Crossville Housing Authority—The Board of the Authority is nppoiniled by the Mayor, bul the City
provides no funding and has no obligation for the debt issucd by the Authority. The City has no
means o impose will upon the operations of the Authority.

Public Building Authority of City of Crossville, Tennessee—The Board of the Authority is appointed
by City Council, but the City provides no funcling and has no obligation for the debt issued by the
Authority. The Cily has no means to impose will upon the operations of the Authorily.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Crossville have been preparcd in conformity with generally
accepled accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to local governmental unils. The Governmental
Accounling Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-selting body for

establishing governmentz] accounting and financial principles. The Cily also applied Financial
Accounting Standards Iloard (FASB) Slatements and Interpretations issued on or before
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

November 30, 1989, to its governmental and business-type activities and to ils enterprise funds
provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The City has elected nol lo
apply FASB pronouncements issued after Novermber 30, 1989 fo ils business-type activilies or
enterprise funds. The most significant of the City's accounting policies are described below:

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The City’s basic financial statements consisl of government-wide stalements, including a statement
of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial stalements, which provide a more

detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements—The statement of nel assets and the slatement of
activities display informalion about the City as a whole. These statements include the financial
activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. The slatements distinguish
belween those activities of the City that are governmental and those that are considered business-

type aclivities

The statemenl of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-
type activities of the City at year-end. The slatement of activities presents a compearison between
direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the City's governmental
activities and for business-type activities of the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program, or department and therefore clearly idenlifiable to a particutar
function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered
by the program, grants and contributions thatl are restricted to meeling the operational or capitai
requirements of a particular program, and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to
support a particular program. Revenues thal are not classified as program revenues are presented
as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceplions, The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmentat program or
business activity is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Fund Financial Statements—During the year, the City segregates transactions related io certain
City functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial slatements are designed to present financial
information of the Cily at his more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund
financial statements is on major funds. Each major fund is preséented in a separate column.
Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

B. FUND ACCOUNTING

The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscal
and accounling entity with a self-balancing se! of accounts. There arc three categories of funds:

Governmental Funds—Governmenta! funds are those through which most governmental
functions of the City are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various
governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current
liabilitics are assigned to the fund frony which they will be paid. The difference between
governmental fund assels and iiabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the City’s

major governmenial funds:

General Fund—The general fund accounts for all financial resources except
those required (0 be accounted for in another fund. [he general fund is
available lo the City for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred
according to the general laws of Tennessee.

Capital Projects Fund—The capital projects fund is used to accounl for financial resources
to be used for the acquisition or construction of major cepital facilities (other than those
financed by enterprise funds).

The other governmental funds of the City account for grants and other resources whose use is
restricted to a particular purpose.

Proprietary Funds—Proprietary fund reporling focuses on the determination of operaling income,
changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The City’s proprietary funds are all
classified as enterprise funds. Enterprise funds may be used o account for any activity for which a
fee is charged to external users for goods or services. All of the Cily's enterprise funds are major

funds.

Water and Sewer Fund—The water and sewer fund is used to account for the
revenues generated from the charges for the distribution of waler and for
sanitary sewer services provided to the residential and commercial users

of the Cily.

Fiduciary Funds—Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The
City has no fiduciary funds.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS

Government-wide Financial Statements—The government-wide financial statements are
prepared using the econamic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities
associaled with the operetion of the City are included on the stalement of net assets.

Fund Financial Statements—All governmenial funds are accounted for using a flow of current
financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and
curren! liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (1 c., revenues and other
financing sources) and uses (i.e., cxpenditures and other financing uses) of current financial
resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activitics of the
government-wide financial statements are prepared. Therelore, qovernmental fung financial
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

statemenls include a reconcilialion with brief explanations to better identify the relationship
between the governmenlt-wide stalements and the slalemenis lor governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statemenis, all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabililies associated with the operalion
of these funds are included on the statement of fund net assets. The statement of changes in
revenucs, expenses, and changes in fund net assets presenls increases (i.e., revenues) and
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assels. The statement of cash flows provides information
about the Cily finances and meetls the cash flow needs of its proprietary aclivities.

D. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting delermines when transaclions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial slatements. Government-wide financial statemenis are prepared using
thc accrual basis of accounting; proprietary and fiduciary also use the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and
the modified accrual basis of accounling arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of
deferred revenues, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues—Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions—Revenue resulting from exchange
transactions, in which each party gives and receives essenlially equal value, is reported on the
accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is reporled in
the year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means that the
resources will be collected within the current year or are expected to be coliected soon enough
thereafter to be used lo pay liabilities of the current year. For the City, available means expected

to be received within sixty days of year-end.

Non-exchange lransaclions, in which the City received value without directly giving equal value in
return, includes income taxes, property faxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxpayer earns income.
Revenue from properly taxes is recognized in the year for which the laxes are levied. Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which
specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first
permitted; matching requirements, in which the Cily must provide local resources to be used for

a specified purposc; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City
on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from a non-exchange transaction

musl also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable arid aviilable at year end: inconic taxes, hotel taxes, charges for services, state-
levied locally shared taxes (including gasoline tax and motor vehicle license fees), interest, grants,

fees, und renlals.
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Deferred Revenue—Deferred revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition critena have been salisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of January 1, 2005, but which were
levied to finance year 2006 operations, have been reported as deferred revenue. Grants and
entitlements received before the eligibility requirements were met also have been reported as

deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables thal will not be coliected within the
available period also have been reflecled as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures—On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the
lime lhey are incurred.

The measurcment focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures} rather than expenses. Expendilures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost,
such as depreciation an¢ amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

Grant Policy—Under the terms of grant agreements, the Cily funds certain programs by a
combinalion of specific cosi-reimbursemeni grants, calegorical block grants, and general
revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted
net asselts available to finance the program. It is the City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement
grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block granis, and then by general

revenues.
E. BUDGET PROCESS
The City charter established the fiscal year as a twelve-monlh period beginning July 1. The

departments submit to the Finance Director and the City Manager a budget of estimated
expenditures for the ensuing fiscel year, after which the budget of eslimaled expenditures and

revenues is submitted to the City Council by May 15.

Upon receipl of the budget estimates, the Council holds a public hearing on the proposed budget
to obtain taxpayer comments

Prior 1o June 30, the budget is legally enacled through passage of an ordinance.

The City Manager is authorized (o transfer budgeted amounts between line items within any
department; however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any department or fund

must be approved by City Council.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council.
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The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—Budget and Actual
presents a comparison of budgetary data to aclual results. The funds of the City utilize the same
basis of accounting for both budgelary purposes and aclual results. Budgels are adopted on a
basis consislent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

To improve cash management, cash received by the City is pooled. Monies for all funds are
maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained through City records.

The Cily has segregated cash accounts for various amounts that are invested with the Slate of
Tennessee in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). During the fiscal year ended June
30, 2005, invesiments were limited 1o deposits with the State of Tennessee in the Local
Government Invesiment Pool. The pool's invesiments are reported at fair value at June 30, 2005
based on markel prices. Earnings on the pooled funds are apportioned ang paid or credited to lhe

funds monthly.

invesiments with an original maturily of three months or tasa at the time of purchase ang
investments of the cash management pool are presented on the financial statements as cash and
cash equivalents because the LGIP is sufficienlly liquid to permit withdrawal of cash al any time

with prior notice or penalty.

G. INVENTORY
Inventory consists of expendable supplies held for consumption.

On government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented al the lower of cost or market
on a first-in, first-out basis and are cxpensed when used.

On the fund financial slatements, invenlories of governmental funds are stated at cost while
inventories of proprietary funds arc statcd «t Ihe lower of cost or market. For all funds, cost is
determined on a first-in, first-out basis. The cost of inventory items is reported as an expendilure in
the governmental fund types when used, and inventories of the proprietary funds are expensed

when used.

H. ACCRUED UNBILLED REVENUE

During the year, customer water meters are read and bills rendered throughout monthly periods.
Because not every meter is read on the saime dale, revenue for water distributed but nol yet billed
is accrued at fiscal year-end to match revenues with related expenses. At June 30, 2005, accrued

unbilled revenues were $260,665.
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I. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets are liquid assets (generaled from revenues and nol bond proceeds) that have
third party (statutory, bond covenant, or granting agency) limitations on their use. The restricted
assets in the enterprise fund represent cash and cash equivalents and investments set aside for

bond interest and sinking funds.

Governmental Activities Amount
Restricted for specific uses $ 58,292
Business-Type Aclivities
Restricted for bond interest and sinking funds 215,473
Total government-wide restricted assets $ 273,765

J. CAPITAL ASSETS

General capital assets are capital assets, which are associated with and generally arise from
governmental activities. They generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds.
General capital assets are reporled in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
statement of net assets but arc not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets
utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type aclivilies column of the
governmeni-wide slatement of net assets and in the respective fund.

Al capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are reported al their fair market value as of the
date received. The City maintains a capitalization threshold ranging from $5,000 for land,
buildings, equipment, and improvements to $20,000 for streetlights, traffic signals, and drainage
systems. The City’s infrastructure consists of City streets, curbs and gutlering, streetlights, traffic
signals. drainage systems, and water and sewer systems. Improvements are capitalized, the costs
of normal mainlenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an

asset's life are not.

All capital assets are deprecialed, except for land and construction in progress. Improvements are
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for
infrastructure were estimated based on the City’s hislorical records of necessary improvement and
replacement. Depreciation is compuled using the straight-line method over the following usefu)

lives:
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Governmenial Activilies Business-Type Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimaled Lives
Buildings and Improvements 20--40 years 20--40 years
Machinery and Equipment 3--10 years 3--10 years
Vebhicles 5ycars S years
Infrastructure 40 years 40 years

K. CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST

In conformity with Financial Accounling Standards No. 34, “Capitalization of Interest Cost," the City
capitalizes interesi costs for business-type activilies only, net of rilaled interest earned, from the
date of the borrowing until the projects acquired with those funds are ready for their intended use.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, no intercst cosls were capilalized as fixed assets in
the Water and Sewer Fund as part of the costs of constructing various projects. Total interest
costs for the Water and Sewer fund amounled lo approximately $489,202.

L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to
receive compensalion are allributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the
employer wiil compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other
means. The liabilily for vacation benefits is reported as “compensated absences”.

City policy provides for the accumulation of unused vacation days above those earned in the
current year to a maximum accumulation of 240 hours. It also provides for the accumulation of sick
days, which has no maximum limitation. When an employee accumulates over 240 hours of
vacation, it is transferred to sick hours. No amounts of sick lcave are vested in the event of
employee lermination. However, sick leave time is credited (o service time upon retirement.

Amounts accrued at June 30, 2005 for compensated absences are not expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources, and accordingly, the liability is not
reported on the governmental fund financial statements. The government-wide statlement of nel

assets does include the liability for compensated absences.
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M. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

All payables, accrued liabililies, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide
financial statemenls. All payabies, accrued liabilities, and long-lerm obligalions payable from
proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a
timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds.
However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefils, and
contractually required pension conlributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported
as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during
the current year. Long-term loans are recognized as a liability on the governmenial fund financia!

statements when due.

N. FUND BALANCE RESERVES

The City reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally sngregated for a specific future
use or which do not represent expendable resources and therefore are not available for

appropriation or expendilure.

O. EQUITY CLASSIFICATIONS—NET ASSETS

Government-wide Statements
Equity is classified as nel assets and displayed in three components:

1) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt—Consists of capital assets
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that
are atiributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2) Restricted net assets—Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use
eilher by (a) external groups such as credilors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legisiation.

3) Unrestricted net assets—All other net asscts that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, nel of related debt”.

Fund Statements

Govermnmenlal fund equily is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as
reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split belween designated and undesignated.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.
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P. OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operaling revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and

delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues are charges to customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as
operaling revenue the portion of tap fees intenaed to recover the cost of connecling new
customers (o the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Q. CONTRIBUTIONS OF CAPITAL

Contributions of capital in the proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions
of capital assels, tap-in fees to the extent they exceed the cost of the connection to the system, or
from grants or oulside centributions of resources restricted (o capitat acquisition and construction

R. INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements
are reporied in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange lransactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expendilures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
withoul a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are
reporled other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating
revenue/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that intlially paid for them are not presented on the financial

slatements.
S. ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statemenis in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make eslimates and assumplions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statemenls and accampanying notes. Actual resulls may differ from those

estimates.
NOTE 3: CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

For the fiscal year 2005, the City has implocmented GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB 40), "Deposit
and Investment Risk Disclosures”. GASB 40 established and mndifies disclosure requirements
related 1o investment and deposit risks. This statemenl addresses common

deposit and investment risks relaled lo credit risk, concentration of credit risk. interest rate risk, and
foreign currency risk. Disclosures per GASB 40 are included Noteo 4.
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NOTE 4: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Depasits—Siale statules require that all deposits in financial institutions be fully collateralized by
an amount equal to 105 percent of the face amount of uninsured deposits  The collateral must be

considered as category 1 for credit risk. The Cily’s deposits were fully insured or collaleralized as
required by state stafutes at June 30, 2005. At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's
deposits was $17,901,454 and the respeclive bank balances totaled $18,420,001.

Deposits of $17,123,936 were held in the Slate of Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP): cash held in checking was covered by the Federal Depository [nsurance Corporation
(FDIC) for $100,000; additionally the bank had assets pledged to the City with collateral at a value

of $2,000,000.

Cash on Hand—At year end; the City had $2,058 in undeposited cash on hand, which is included
on the balance sheet of Ihe City as part of “Cash and cash equivalents”.

Investment—At June 30, 2005, $421,738 of funds were held in trust funds from the issue of a
loan. Such funds will be withdrawn as needed for capital projects. These funds have been
classified as investments, as they will be held typically longer than three months.

Cash and cash equivalenls are all highly liquid investmenls with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased.

Custodial Credit Risk—Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Cily's deposits may not be returnad or the City will not be able to recover collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. The City does not have an investment policy, but
adhcres to the requirements of the State of Tennessee that 105% of deposits must be

securcd by collateral valued at market or par, less the amount of the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation insurance (FDIC).

NOTE 5. RECEIVABLES

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not
yetreceived. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends
and the periodic aging of accounls receivable. Major receivable balances for the governmental
activities include property taxes, intergovernmental laxes, and granls. Business-type aclivities
report ulilities as its major receivable. A long-term note receivable of $978,000 is also included,
which represents long-term debt to the Tennessee Municipal League Bond Fund as more detailed

in Note 12.

Property Taxes—Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utilites, and also
for industrial and commercial taxpayers on tangible personal property located in the City.
Prouorty lax revenue received during 2005 fer real and public utility property taxes represents

coliections of the 2004 taxes.
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2005 real property taxes are levied each July 1 on lhe assesscd value as of January 1, 2005, the
lien date. Assessed values are established by the State of Tennessee at the following rales of

assumed market value:

Public utility properly 55% (Railroads 40%)

Industrial and commercial property

Real 40%
Personal 30%
Residential propernty 25%

Taxcs were levied at the rale of $.70 per $100. Payment may be made during the period from
August 1 through November 30 and become delinquent on December 1 of each tax year. Current
tax collections of $1,640,193 for ihe fiscal vear ended June 30, 2005 were approximately 87.12%

of the tax levy for 2004 taxes.

Intergovernmental Receivables—A summary of inlergovernmental receivables follows:

Governmental Aclivilies Amount
Local option sales tax $ 1,137,459
Slate sales tax 101,422
Telecommunications sales tax 273
Gasoline taxes 50,573
Mixed drink tax 8,723
Slate income tax 66,435
Total Governmental Activities 1,364,885

Business-Type Activities
Intergovernmental receivable o 0
Total Intergovernmental Receivables $ 1,364,885

NOTE 6—RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Crossville is exposed to various risks, general liability and property and casualty iosses.
The City has decided il is more economically feasible to join a public entily risk pool as

opposed lo purchasing commercial insurance for general liabilily and property and casualty
coverage. The City participates in the TML Insurance Pool, which is a public entity risk poal
established by the Tennessee Municipal League. The Cily pays an annual premium to
TML for its general liability, property and casualty insurance coverage. The pool
reinsures through commercial insurance companics
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NOTE 7—CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005, is as foliows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being deprecialed
Land

Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being

depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Improvements other than bldgs
Infrastructure

Total capitlal assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Improvements other than bldgs

Infrastructure
Total accumulated deprecialion
Net capital assets being depreciated

Governmental Activities Capital
Assels, Net
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Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additions Disposals  June 30, 2005
$ 2249449 § 219549 § 15,900 § 2.453,098
47,452 293,188 180,876 159,764
2,296,901 512,737 196,776 2612862
5,333,836 538,284 0 5,872,120
4,327,183 255,830 257,155 4,325,858
7,002,788 54,524 0 7,057,312
9,946,993 2,148,978 0 12,095,971
26,610,800 2,997 616 257,155 29,351,261
(1,175,774) (139,498) 0 (1,315,272)
(3,329,064) (400,290) (251,873) (3,477,481)
(820,450) (179,035) 0 (999,485)
(2,.368,142) (337,464) 0 (2,705,606)
_(7,693,430) _ (1,056,287) (251,873)  (8,497,844)
18,917,370 1,941,329 5282 20,853,417
$ 21214271 $ 2,454,066 $ 202,058 § 23,466,279
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Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additions Disposals  June 30, 2005

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets not being deprecialed

Land $ 294,010 % 0 9 0 9% 294,010

Construction in progress _ 636,873 524,540 279214 882,199
Total capital assets not being

depreciated 930,883 524,540 279214 1,176,209
Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and distribution lines 53,841,557 710,361 10,300 54,541,618

Machinery and equipment 2,470,938 181,696 47,692 2,604,942
Total capital assels being depreciated 56,312,495 892.057 57.992 57,146,560
Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings and distribution lines (15,660,256) (1,421,605) 0 (17,081,861)

Machinery and equipment (1,746,222)  (185,354) (43,449)  (1,888,127)

Total accumulated depreciation (17,406,478) _ (1,606,959) (43,449)  (18,969,988)
Net capital assels being depreciated 38,906,017 (714,902) 14,543 38,176,572

Business-Type Activities Capital
Assels, Net $ 39,836,900 $§ (190,362) $ 293,757 $ 39,352,781

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General Government $ 176677
Public safely 194,073
Streels 394,798
Cemeateries 4,994
Leisure and cultural 182,843
Airport 101,407
Sanitation 1,495
Tolal depreciation expense $ 1,056,287
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Construction in progress for the City of Crossville consists of {he following:

Governmental Activities:
Totat

Project Cost

Expended lo
June 30, 2005

Remaining
Costs Source of Funds

Horseshoe pits $ 70,000 § 35,811 % 30,189 Citizen donalions and City funds
Public safety building imp. 325,000 9.833 315,167 City funds
GIS dgital imagary mapping 67,840 30.700 37,240 City funds
Tulip Drive extension 450,000 24,500 425,500 Stale street aid funds
Cenlennial Pk playground eq. 59,920 54,920 5,000 City funds
Tolal Government Activities  $ 972,860 $ 159,764 $_ 813,096
Business-Type Activities:
Total Expended lo Remaining
Project Cost  June 30, 2005 Costs Source of Funds

1278 ulility relocation $ 686,000 % 9,993 $ 676,007 City rehabilitation savings/or State
I/! Waslewaler improvements 400,000 7,800 392,200 Cily funds
MP Lake Containment Pond 15,000 12,010 2,990 Cily funds
Miller Ave utllity relocation

Cilty malch 348,338 314,590 33,749 City funds
Holiday Hilis dam overflow 600,000 104,193 495,807 Cily funds
Meadow Park Lake

Dam project 10,000,000 433,613 9,566,387 Cily funding preliminary, fed grants
Total Business-Type Act. $ 12,049,339 § 882,199 § 11,167,140

NOTE 8: LONG-TERM DEBT

The reporting entity's long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from
governmental activities and amounts 10 be repaid from business-lype activities.

Governmental Activities

As of June 30, 2005, the governmental long-term debt of the City of Crossville consisted of the

following:
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$1,000,000 note dated 11/17/04, variable interest rate est. average
3.5% with principal ranging from $22,000--$66,000 znnually $ 978,000

$250,000 Capital outlay note, date 1/26/00, annual payment

of $25.000 wilh 0% interest. 100,000
Accrued compensated absences 207,745
Total Governmental Activities Debt $ 1,285,745

Business-Type Activities

As of June 30, 2005, the business-type long-term debt of the City of Crossville consisted of the
following:

$1,931,989 dated April 1, 1985, State of Tennessee bonds, monthly
payments of $14,224 through March 2014, average interest rate $ 1,157,475
of 3.31%

$4,713,500 General obligation loan dated February 25, 1999, inlerest
payable monthly at variable rates, annual principal payments
of $154,340 - $371,450 beginning May 25, 2001 3,860,670

$2,550,000 General obligation refunding bonds, Series 1993, due in
annual installments from $30,000 - $305,000 through 20086,
interest al 3.0% - 5.45% 240,000

$2,650,000 Stale of Tennessee loan daled May 5, 1992, monthly
payments of $14,224 at 2.64% interest through July 2014 1,377,151

$4,200,000 General obligation loan dated June 26, 1996, interesl
payable manthly al variable rate, annual principal payment
of $229,700 - $4 36,000 began May 1999 1,501,300

$7,500,000 State of Tennessee loan, initial amounts drawn down of

$5,759,366 with $1,740,634 available for one year; mionthly
payment of $28,512 at 1 77% interest through March 2024 5,421,893
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$1,675,000 State of Tennessee loan, initial amounts drawn down of

$1,210,042 with $464 958 available for one year;, monthly
Payments of $§5,822 at 1.47% inlerest through November 2024 1,162,860

$575,000 State of Tennessee loan, initial rate of 1.47%--initial
amount being drawn down, but loan not finalized; monthly
payments of $2,284 until February 2023 457,526

$2,800,000 RUD loan dated November 12, 2003, monthly payments

of $11.518 at 4.25% interest through April 2042 2,531,479
Less: deferred amount on refunding _ (24,414)
Total Business-Type Debt - $17,686,040

Changes in Long-term Debt

The foliowing is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2005:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2004  Additions Reduclions June 30, 2005 One Year

Governmental Activities:

TML 2004 note $ 0 $1,000,000 8 22,000 $§ 978,000 $ 39,000
Gen Obligation Capilal

Outlay Note 125,000 0 25,000 100,000 25,000
Compensaled absences 171,765 35,980 _ 0 207,745 0

Total Governmental Acliv. $ 296,765 $1,035980 % 47,000 § 1285745 § 64,000
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Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2004 Additions Reductions June 30, 2005 One Year
Business-Type Activities:
Gen Obligation loan
1999 TMBF $ 4,048,270 § 0 $187600 § 3,860,670 $ 196,990
Gen Obligation loan
1996 TMBF 1,818,000 0 316,700 1,501,300 334,000
Tennessee | oc:l
Dev Authorily loan 1,509,583 0 132,432 1,377,151 135,968
Tennessee Local
Dev Authority loan 1,258,29¢ 0 100,824 1,157,475 88,754
Series 1993 Refunding
Bonds 495,000 0 255,000 240,000 240,000
SRF loan 5,578,151 91,006 247 264 5,421,893 253,991
RUD loan 2,586,018 0 54,539 2,531,479 31,232
SRF loan 437,521 37.125 17,120 457,526 20,820
SRF loan 1,205,702 10,070 = 52812  1,162960 53,729
Total Business-Type Act. 18,936,544 138,201 1,364,291 17,710,454 1,365,484
Less deferred amount
on refunding (48.827) 0 (24 .413) (24 414) (24.414)

Net Business-Type
Activities Debt
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Annual Debt Service Requirements

The annual debt service requirements to malurity, including principal and interest for long-lerm
debt as of June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Year Ending Governmenlal Activities Business-Type Activities
June 30 Principal Interesl Principal Interest
2006 $ 64000 $ 34,230 $ 1,365484 § 585,197
2007 65,000 32,865 1,171,213 534,846
2008 66,000 31,465 1,219,062 495,839
2009 68.000 30,030 1,269,170 454,968
201C 44,000 28,525 958,523 412,152
2011 -- 2015 239,000 118,720 4,702,006 1,542,457
2016 -- 2020 278,000 /4,225 3,658,703 821,366
2021 - 2025 254,000 22,505 1,797,717 413,430
2026 -- 2030 0 0 397,830 293,250
2031 -- 2035 0 0 491,838 199,242
2036 -- 2040 0 0 608,060 83,021
2041 -- 2042 0 0 70,848 804
Less deferred amount
on refunding 0 0 (24,414) 0

$ 1,078,000 S 372575 $17.686.040 3 _5836.672

NOTE 9—INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2005, consisted of the following:

Transfers From Transfer To Amount Purpose
General fund Sanitation fund $ 334,017 Residenlial garbage collection costs
General fund Capital Projects fund 78,424 Constructlion costs for capital assels
General fund Waler & Sewer fund 21,278 Deprecialion costs of public works
Water and Sewer fund  Goeneral fund 76,544 Public works costs allocalion
Tramsfers are used 1o move revenues from the fund thal stalute or budget requires fo collect them

to the fund that s‘atutc or budgel requires to expend them; to move unresliricted revenues collecled
in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations, and to segregate money for anlicipated capital projects.
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NOTE 10—PENSION FUND

Plan Description

Employees of Crossville are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated
Rctiremeni System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Benefils are determined by a formula using the member's high five-year average salary
and years of service. Members become eligible 1o retire at the age of 80 with five years of service
or al any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested
members at the age of 55. Disabllity benefits are available 1o active members with five years of
service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no service
requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was
in the performance of duty. Members joining the system after July 1, 1979 become vested after
five years of service and members joining prior to July 17, 1879 were vested after four years of
service. Benefil provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8. Chapter 34-37 of the
Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State stalutes are amended by the Tennessee General
Assembly. Political subdivisions such as Crossville participate in the TCRS as individual entities
and are liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their plan. Benefit
improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision unless approved by the chief governing

body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the PSPP. That report may be oblained by writing to
Tennessee Trcasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10" Floor Andrew Jackson
Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at www.treasury.state.tn.us.

Funding Policy

Crossville has adopled a noncontributory retirement plan for its employees by assuming employee
contributions up lo 5.0 percenl of annual covered payroll.

Crossville is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rale; the rate for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2005 was 13.61% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan
members (s set by state stalute. The conlribution requirement for Crossville is established and
may be amended by the TCRS Board of Truslees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2005, Crossville’s annual pension cost of $585,068 o TCRS was
equal to Crossyville’s required and aclual contributions. The required contribution was determined
as part of the July 1, 2003 acluarial valualion using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method.
Significant acluarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a} rate of return on investment of
present and future assets of 7.5 percent a year compounded annually,
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(b) projected salary increases of 4.75 percenl (graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made
regarding the portion atlributable to the effects of inflation on salaries). (c) projected 3.5 percent
annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and (@) projecled posl retiremen! increases of
3.0 percent annually. The actuarial value of assels was determined using technigues that smooth
the effect of short-lerm volatility in the markel value of tolal investments over a five-year period.
Crossvilie’'s unfunded actuarial accrued liabilily is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a
closed basis. The rema ning amortization period at July 1, 2003 was 12 years.

An acluarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2003, which established contribution rales
effeclive July 1, 2004.

Trend Information

Annual Pension % of APC Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2005 $585.068 100.00% $ 0
June 30, 2004 $467.761 100.00% $
June 30, 2003 $454,079 100.00% ) 0

NOTE 11: GARBAGE COLLECTION AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT CONTRACTS

The City executed a conlract with Waste Industries of Tennessee, LLC doing business as
Cumberland Waste Disposal on July 31, 2002 for a five-year period for the City’s garbage
collection. The rates for residential customers provide for one pickup per week. The prior coniracl
had provided for commercial and residentlial pickups; with the new contract, commercial customers
pay fees directly to the conlraclor. Annual garbage fees paid during the fiscal year ended June 30,

2005 for residential pickups were $319,075.

On November 1, 1999, the City contracted with U.S. Filter for operation of waslewater and related
lreaiment facilities, and lo provide service for the collection system rehabilitation program for a
period of five years. The annual expense for the year ended June 30, 2005 was $179,606 for
sewer rchabilitation and $807,767 for wastewater facilities operations. The contracl was renewed

in November 2004 for an additional five-year period.
NOTE 12: OPERATING AGREEMENT AND MERGER OF WATER DISTRICT

On July 20, 2004, the City of Crossville, Tennessee and Catoosa Ulility District of Cumberiand and
Fentress Counties, Tennessee enlered into a consoclidation agreement whereby they agreed lo
consolidate the District’s System into the City’s ulility syslem as a separate departiment pursuant to
TCA 7-82-202(f) by transferring all of the District's property and obligations to the Cily.

In accordance with the Act and the requirements of the Consolidation Agreement, the District
submitled a petition for consolidation with the Utilities Management Review Board (UMRB) for its
review and comment. The UMRB reviewed the Petition of Consolidation at its meeling on August
5, 2004 and 1ssucd favorable comnmients on the proposed consolidation, which were forwarded with
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the original Petition for Consolidation to the Cumberland County Mayor in accordance wilh the Act.
On Oclober 29, 2004, the Cumberland County Mayor held a public hearing on the Petition for
Consolidation in order to determine whelher the public convenience and necessily required such
consolidation pursuani to the requirements of the Acl. On November 5, 2004, the Cumberland
County Mayor issued an order denying the Petition for Consolidation. The District filed an appeal
of the Mayor's order on November 15, 2004 in the Cumberland County Circuit Court pursuant to
TCA 7-82-202 and the City has filed a motion lo intervene, but the appeal has nol yet gone to trial.

In order to immediately achieve certain operation efficiencies and lower rates for the District’s
customers, and to facilitate other benefits of consolidation for their respeclive utilily customers, the
City and District entered into an Inlerim Operaling Agreement dated December 28, 2004.

The Operating Agreement, effective April 1, 2005, appointed the Cily as the Districl’s Agenl with
aulhority to exercise all of ihe powers that can be lawfully delegated to the City and perform all of
the duties of the District :n connection with the operalions of the Dislrict's entire water system and

alt of the District’s operalions.

Effective October 1, 2005, the City and District have approved the annexation and consolidation
into the City of Crossville, Tennessee as a separate deparlment of the City of Crossville.

NOTE 13: LOAN RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE FOR E911 PROJECT

On November 17, 2004, the City closed a $1,000,000 loan from the Tennessee Municipal League
Bond Fund for the benefil of the Cumberland County Emergency Communications District. These
funds were used by the District to construct a facility to house the 911 Call Center, the
Crossville/Cumberland County Central Coiimunications Center, the 911 Addressing Office, the
Crossville/Cumberland County Emergency Management Office, and the Crossville, Cumberland
County Emergency Operations Center. The District and Cumberland County have encumbered
the property and the funds of the District to secure the indebledness incurred by the Cily.
Repayment of the loan is being made by the District over a 20-year period at a variable rate.

The government-wide balance sheet includes the loan receivable from the District at June 30, 2005
of $978,000 and reflects the Cily's relaled liability to the Tennessee Municipai League Bond Fund
of the same. Principal paid during the fiscal year of $22,000 and inlerest and expenses paid of
$13,008 have been included in the financial sfatements by the City as operating grants and
contributions and debt expenditures.

NOTE 13: RESTRICTIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
The City participates in certain federal and slate assisted granl programs. These programs are

subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Any liability for
reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits is not believed to be material.

Various claims and lawsuits are pending agains! the Cily. In the opinion of City management, after
consultation with legal counsel, the polential loss on all claims and lawsuits will not malerially effect

the City’s financial posilion.
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NOTE 14: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to pension benefits described in Note 10, the Cily provides post-employment benefit
options for health care to eligible retirees, disabled employees, and their families. The benefits are
provided in accordance with City ordinances and the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act of 1885 (COBRA). The criteria lo determine eligibility include: years of service, employee age,
disability due to line of duty. The City funds the benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. The City pays
the cost of the health insurance premiums until they are eligible for Medicare benefits. During the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, expenses of $16,271 were
recognized for post-employment benefits. There are 3 participants currently eligible. Expenses
for post-retirement health care benefits are recognized as eligible employee claims are paid.

NOTE 15: OTHER COMMITMENTS

The State of Tennessee has a road projecl on Miller Avenue that required relocation of utility lines
at an estimated cost to the City of $348,339. These funds were fransferred to a LGIP account
during September 2001 Ultility relocations are completed, bul the project has not been closed out.

The City's commilment to purchase right of way and the relocafion of ail utilities for the Genesis
Road expansion costs were originally estimated at $1,414 500 but estimales have been raised to
$2,351,522. The State is providing approximately $1,030,424 and the City will be responsible for
all other costs. To date the city has expended 31,450,876 for water and sewer line relocation. The
City has deposited $510,803 in an LGIP account for this purpose.

The City is still holding $45,006 in retainage from Milbourn Construction for the construction of the
Greenbriar sewer project.

Interchange lighting at 1-40 and 127N was contracted on November 14, 2005 for $170,276. The
City has previously deposited $55,000 into 2 LG!P account, and will owe an additional $30,138.
The State of Tennessee is providing 50% of the cost through a grant {o the City.

The City has contracted wilh an engineering firm to perform preliminary work and a feasibility
study, obtain permits, and do the necessary planning to raise lhe dam at Meadow Park Lake for
$620,370 to date. Total project costs are unknown at this time, but $10 million is eslimated for

construction in progress projections.

The State of Tennessee is requiring the City to repair and improve the dam at Holiday Lake, along
with repair to the bridge and enlarging the spillway. The cosls for this project are estimated 1o be
near $1,000,000. Plans for the dam repair have been approved by the State. A 50% grant from
TDOT is expected of $200,000 for bridge improvements.

The City is holding retainage fees of $40,000 from MPACT Construction Company for problems
with retaining walls at the recreation parks additional ficlds. The money 1s escrowed at a local
bank Additionally, the bonding company has been contacled to request additional funds to pay for

the correclional work.
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The City was awarded a $500,000 CDBG grant and $75,000 HPG for housing rehabilitation;
approximately 75% of the grant funds have been ulilized. The grant requires no local match, but
granl funds are paid to the City after work has been performed as a reimbursement of approved

Costs.

A $250,000 contract has been executed for road, water and sewer for an iris Lane abutment
project. Taxpayers will pay back 75% of the original estimated cost over a five-year period.

Extension of Tulip Drive has been contracted with Freitag Construction for $323,095. Also, a
contract for stream mitigation of $66,500 is near completion with this contractor.

Contracts with various engineering firms have been executed totalirg $169,100 for several projecls
requiring studies, engineering and design. The cosls for these projccts are unknown at the present
time, but two projects have estimated costs of $725,000.

A joint projecl with TDOT to build the northwest connector is beginning, with a current commitment
of $264,000 by the City for engineering for Phase | and Il of the project. Total cost has nol been

determined.

The City has agreed o annex Cumberland Mountain State Park and provide sanitary sewer
services to the park. A grant of approximately $950,000 will provide funding to exiend sewer lines
to the area, and the Stale of Tennessee will pay the costs of sewer within the park boundaries.

A fire pumper truck was ordered during the fiscal year at an estimated cost of $353.000, which will
be paid during the fall of 2005.

The City of Crossville, Tennessee has commitied to pay $112,000 to fund retirement costs for the
employees brought into the plan from the merger of Catoosa Utihty District.

NOTE 16: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
The City paid $149,500 for roadwork and ultility relocation in a prior year that had been recorded as

conslruction in progress in the water and sewer fund. The general fund reimbursed the water and
sewer fund for this expenditure, which had been properly recorded ir: capital assets.

NOTE 17: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City boughl! back the speculative building at the buyer's cosl during the 2005 fiscal year. In
September 2005, the building was sold to another buyer for $550,000.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - PENSION PLAN
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuara' Acluaria! Unfunded Funded
Value of Accrued AAL Ratio
Actuarial Assets Liabilty (UAAL)
Valuation (AAL)
Date (a) (b) {b)-(a) {a/b)
07/01/03 $ 7,705 $ 9,076 $ 1371 84.89%
07/01/01 6,658 8,107 1,449 82.13%
07/01/99 5,674 6,579 805 86.24%
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Covered UAAL as a
Payroll Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
(c) ((b-a)c)
$ 4,100 33.44%
3,508 41.31%
3,028 29.91%



City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with
BUDGET Final Budget

Original ) Final Aclual Fav. (Unfavorable)
REVENUE
Taxes
Property taxes $ 1,679,000 S 1.679,000 $ 1,612,003 $ (66,997)
Business taxes 425,000 425,000 457,685 32,685
Penalties and interest on taxes 18,000 18,000 31,912 13,912
Wholeszle beer and liquor laxes 460,000 460,000 487,987 27,987
Payments in lieu of taxes 147,800 147 800 150,670 2,870
Local option sales taxes 5.700.¢00 5,700,000 6,273,545 573,545
Special lax assessments 7,273 ‘ 7,273 7,273 0
Tolal taxes 8,437,073 8,437,073 9,021,075 584,002
Licenses and Permits
Building, plumbing, and related ¢ 102,000 102,000 214,745 112,745
Beer permits and other 19500 19500 15010 _ (4,490)
Total licenses and permits 121,500 _ 121,500 229,755 108,255
Intergovernmental Revenues
State income tax 120,000 120,000 71,149 (48,851)
State beer and liquor lax 45,400 45,400 51,751 6,351
Stale sales lax 565,600 565,600 583,550 17,950
Excise taxes 27,000 27,000 47,906 20,806
Cuty streetl and transporiation 21,400 21,400 21,597 197
Granl revenue 823,000 973,000 328,346 (644 ,654)
Telecommunications tax 1,600 1,600 1,625 25
Tota! intergovernmental revenue 1,604,000 1,754,000 1,105,924 {648,076)
Interest 100,000 ~_ 100,000 183,240 183,240
Fines and Forfells
City court fines and olher 128,500 126,500 128,601 2,101
Charges for Services
Clerk fees 5,000 5,000 4,705 (295)
Park and recrealion charges 140,300 140,300 177,020 36,720
Traffic signal maintenance 0 ¢ 18,000 18,000
Driver and safety school fees 26,000 26000 25026 (974)
Total charge for services 171,300 171,300 224,751 53451

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
General Fund

Miscellaneous Revenue
Cemetery revenue
Sale of land and equipment
Airporl
Donations
Cable tv royallies
GIS revenue
Other miscellaneous

Tolal miscellaneocus revenue

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES

Genergl government
Legislative
Personnel services
Conlractuai services
Materials & supplies

Total legislative

City court
Personnel services
Contraclual services
Materials & supplies

Tolal city court

Central staff
Personnel services
Contractual services
Materials & supplies
Other services & charges
Capital outlay

Total central staff

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance wih

~ BUDGET B Final Budget
Original Final Aclual Fav. (Unfavorable)
20,000 20,000 24,974 4,974
3,250 3,250 21,660 18,410
84,900 84,9800 79,296 (5.604)
4,700 29,700 31,900 2,200
100,000 100,000 108,630 8,630
7,500 7,500 12,723 5,223
18,150 67,280 114,216 46,936
238,500 312,630 393,399 - 80,769
10,798,873 11,023,003 11,286,745 263,742
38,345 38,377 33,062 5,315
5,900 5,650 3,652 2,098
1,400 1,650 883 B 767
45,645 45,677 37,497 8,180
11,750 11,750 10,837 913
350 350 0 350
1,500 1,500 1,024 476
13,600 13,600 11,861 1,739
55,7,850 558,624 546,274 12.250
38,750 38,750 32,059 6,191
16,090 16.080 27,310 (11.220)
500 500 0 500
36,500 36,500 13,908 22,592
649,690 650,364 620,051 30,313

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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Engineering
Personnel services
Contractual services
Materials & supplies
Other services & charges
Capital outlay

Tolal engineering

Planning & zoning
Personnel services
Contractual services
Materials & supplies

Tolal planning & zoning

Municipal buildings
Personnel services
Contractual services
Materials & supplies
Other services & charges
Capilal outlay

Total municipal buildings

Mainlenance
Personnel services
Contractual services
Malerials & supplies
Other services & charges
Capilal outlay

Total mainlenance

Administrative
Personnel services
Coniractual services
Materials & supplies
Other services & charges

Grants, contributions & other

Total administrative

City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with

BUDGET Final Budget
Original Final Actual Fav. (Unfavorable)
175,800 198,176 183,689 14,487
43,850 28,050 13,387 14,663
9,250 18,250 12,105 6,145
1,000 1,000 135 865
97,000 103,500 47,376 56,124
326,700 348,976 256,692 92,284
1,350 1,450 1.364 86
9,200 9,200 8.801 399
1,500 1,400 247 1,153
12,050 12,050 10,412 1,638
32,424 32,803 30,518 2,285
61,500 59,900 37.404 22,496
4,400 5,400 4,345 1,055
2,000 2,000 688 1,312
10,000 10,600 10,525 75
110,324 110,703 83,480 27,223
513,100 531,777 522,774 9,003
60,600 56,492 38,729 17,763
76,350 73,500 70,943 2,557
1,200 1,200 612 588
55,500 48,758 41,585 7,163
706,750 711,727 674,653 - 37,074
117,900 108,578 90,654 17,924
149,400 128,035 87,646 40,389
3,500 3.500 3.225 275
140,500 175,310 173,176 2,134
527,300 507,150 438,493 68,857
938,600 922,573 793,194 129,379

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Tree board
Personnel services
Malerials & supplies

Total lree board

Nenprofil organizations
Grants, contributions & other

Tolal nonpiofit orgari-ations

Public works
Personnel services
Contraclual services
Matenals & supplies
Other services & chizrqes

Total public works

Total general government

Public safety
Public safety building

Personnel services
Contractual services
Materials & supplies
Other services & charges
Grants, conlributions & other
Capital outlay

Tolal public safety building

Auxiliary police
Personnel services
Contractual services
Materials & supplies

Total auxiliary police

Original

City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
General Fund

750
__ 15750

16,500

188,152

204,497
43,650
15,400

2,200

265,747

_ 3273758

35,249
259617
5,100
1,500
8,500
10,000

319,966

11,130
250
4,000

15,380

_ BUDGET

Variance with
Final Budget

F_iﬁal Actual Fav. (Unfavorable)
850 780 70
15,650 7,907 7,743
16,500 8,687 71813
209,952 200,732 9,220
205,233 196,570 8,663
43.986 23,194 20,792
14,600 9,136 5,464
2,200 451 1,749
266,019 229351 36,668
3,308,141 2,926,610 381,531
35,578 32,401 3,177
259,617 253,615 6,002
5,100 3,932 1,168
1,500 706 784
8,500 8,500 0
__ 10,000 0 10,000
320,295 299,154 21,141
11,130 5,663 5.467
250 0 250
4000 204 3,796
15,380 5,867 9,513

The notes 1o the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statemenl.



City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with

BUDGET Final Budget
Original Final Actual Fav. {Unfavorable)
Police
Personnel services 1,763,860 1,787,703 1,771,411 16,292
Contractual services 96,500 103,300 94,228 9,072
Materials & supplies 116,900 121,600 101,991 19,609
Other services & charges 3.800 3,800 1,606 2,124
Granis, contrniputions & other 2,000 200 200 0
Capital outiay 162,000 171,430 145,096 26,334
Total police 2,145,060 2,188,033 2,114,532 73,501
Fire
Personnel services 1,048,320 1,055,846 1,028,410 27,436
Contractual services 126,283 133,333 115,006 18,327
Materials & supplies 96,000 101,550 110,930 (9,380)
Other services & charges 1,200 1,200 974 226
Grants, conlributions & other: 21,129 21,129 21,129 0
Capital oullay 47,400 42,275 8,475 33,800
Total fire 1,340,332 1,355,333 1,284,924 70,409
Codes adminislralion
Personnel services . 160,572 162,205 129,066 33,139
Conlraclual services 7,400 7.400 4,021 3,379
Materials & supplies - 11,250 11,098 3,965 7,130
Tolal codes adminis:ration 179,222 180,700 137,052 43,648
Animal control
Personnel services 34,249 34,383 32,213 2170
Contractual services 2,500 2,806 2,237 569
Materials & supplies 4,000 4,000 2,972 1028
Olher services & charges 200 100 0 100
Granls, contributions & other 30,750 30,750 30750 i 0
Total animal control 71,699 72,039 68,172 3,867
Total public safety 4,071,659 4,131,780 3,909,701 222,079

The notes to the basic financia! statements are an inlegral par! of this statement.
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Highways and slreets
Personnel services
Contraclual services
Materials & supplies
Other services & charges
Capital outlay

Total highways and streels

Comcterion
Personnel services
Contractual services
Materials & supplies

Granls, contributions & other:

Tolal cemeteries

Leisure and cullural

Recreation parks
Personnel scrvices
contractual serviccs
Materials & supplics
Olher services & charges
Grants, contributions & olher
Capital outlay

Tolal recreation parks

Meadow Park Lake
Parsonnel services
Contraciual services
Materials & supplies
Capital outlay

Total Meadow Park Lake

City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET {GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance wilh

_ BUDGET Fina) Budget
___ Original Final Actual Fav. (Unfavorable)
463,539 470,512 453,771 16,741
123,375 116,456 69,570 46,885
348,450 348,939 355,897 (6,958)
6,000 6,000 5,531 469
227,000 271,070 120,479 150,591
1,168,364 1,212,976 1,005,248 207,728
76,498 77,664 38,983 38,681
14,125 14,125 1,772 12,353
6,250 6.003 1,756 4,247
1.000 1,000 0 1,000
97,873 98,792 42,511 i 56,281
318,965 317,799 285,288 32,511
177,850 168,486 146,821 21,665
102,700 110,100 116,194 (6.094)
1.500 1,500 1,172 328
15,500 10,050 10,050 0
83500 B LR | - 38,484
700,015 755,149 668,255 86,894
61,600 63,861 59,458 4,403
28,900 29,025 15317 13,708
17,550 16,625 19.714 (3.089)
o 14,600 _13.758 _ 9280 _ 4,508
122,700 123,269 103,739 19,530

The noles to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this staterment.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with

~ BUDGET Final Budgel
Original Final Actual Fav. {Unfavorable)
Palace Thealre
Personnel services 69,4484 6,459 65,667 2,792
Contraclual services 85,7 )G £3,470 73,790 9,680
Materials & supplies 44,000 42,100 39,018 3.082
Other services & charges 1,250 1,000 334 666
Capital oullay 3,500 9,600 5,441 4,159
Total Palace Theatre 203,898 204,629 184,250 20,379
Tolal Leisure and cultural 1,026,613 1,083,047 956,244 126,803
Airport
Personnel services 22,549 23,264 22,750 514
Contractual services 50,590 50,190 38.619 11,571
Materials & supplies 4,200 4,300 3.858 442
Other services & charges 5,450 5,450 5414 36
Capital outlay o 0 166,817 0 166,817
Total airporl 82788 250,021 70,641 179,380
Tourism Development
Contraclual services 0 11,250 10,631 719
Supplies 0 400 400 0
Granls, contributions & others o] 63465 61,353 2112
Tolal Tourism Development B 0 75,115 72,284 2,831
Debt service
Principal 25,000 25,000 47,000 (22,000)
Inlerest 0 0 13,008 (13,008)
Fiscal agenl fees 5,000 5,000 0 5,000
Total debt service 30,000 30,000 60,008 _(30,008)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES _9751,056 10,189,872 8,043,247 1,146,625

The notes to (he basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

BUDGET
Original Final
REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 1,047 817 833,131
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operealing lransfers in
Water and sewer fund 94,000 94,000
Operating transfers oul
Solid waste fund (337,350) (337,350)
Water and sewer fund (25,000) (25,000)
Capital projects fund (670,000) (695,000)
Total olher finan. sources (Uses) (938,350) __(963,350)
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 109,467 (130,219)
FUND BALANCE, beginning of yr 9,081,657 9,081,657
Prior period adjuslment 0 0
FUND BALANCE, end of year § 9,191,124 5 8,951,438

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual [Fav. (Unfavorable)
2,243,498 1,410,367
76,544 (17,456)
(334,017) 3,333
(21,278) 3,722
Aredad) . 616,576

__ (357,175) 606,175
1,886,323 2,016,542
9,081,657 0
(149,500) 0

$ 10,818,480 $ 2,016,542

The notes to the basic financial stalements are an integral part of this slatemenl.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
Capital Projects Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with

BUDGET Final Budget
__Original _ ___Final Actual Fav. (Unfavorable)

REVENUE

Inlergovernmental revenue $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 0

Charges for services 0 Q 0 0

Fines and costs 0 0 0 0

Public enterprise revenue 0 0 0 0

Interest income 0 0 0 0

Donations--DARE 0 0 0 0

Granls 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0

Tola! revenue 0 0 0 . a
EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay ____670,000 695,000 78,424 616,576

Total expenditures ___ 670,000 695,000 78,424 616,576
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE

OVER EXPENDITURES (670,000) (695,000) (78,424) 616,576
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operaling transfers in 670,000 695,000 78,424 (616,576)
REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES 0 4] 0 0
FUND BALANCE , beginningofyear 0 0 0 )
FUND BALANCE, end of year $ 0 0o $ 0 8 0

The notes to the basic financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2005

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS TOTAL
State Solid UDAG Ind. NONMAJOR
Street Waste Drug Development GOVERNMT
___Ad__ Management Fund __Fund FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash $ 524878 $ 0 $§ 50922 $ 254097 § 829,897
Cash - restricted 0 0 38,375 0 38,375
Accounts receivable, net 0 0 0 95,241 96,241
Inveitory 0 974 0 0 974
Due from other governments 46,990 o 0 72,990 116,980
TOTAL ASSETS $ 571868 $§ 974 $ 89297 § 423328 $ 1,085467
LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE
LIAGILITIES
Accounts payable $ 5092 $ 0% 700 $ 0 93 5792
Unearned grant revenue 0 0 0 0 0
Total liabililies 5,092 0 700 0 5,792
FUND BALANCE
Desi¢ated 0 0 0 0 0
Undesignated 566,776 974 88,597 423,328 1,079,675
Tolal fund equity 566.776 974 88,597 423,328 1,079,675
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE § 571,868 % 974 $ 89,207 § 423,328 $ 1,085,467

I'he notes 1o the basic financial statements are an integral parl of this stalement,
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REVENUE
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services

Fines and forfeits

Public enferprise revenue

Interest income
Donalions
Granis
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES

Street lighting
Collection fees
DARE program
Landfih

Drug enforcement

Capital outlay

Malerials and supplies
Repairs and maintenance

Debt sarvice
Other

Total expendilures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) REVENUE
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of assets
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)
Total olher financing sources (uses)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) REVENUE &
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURE!

FUND BALANCE, beginning

FUND BALANCE, ending

City of Crossville, Tennessee

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

The noles lo Lthe basic financial statements are an integral part of this statemenl.

TOTAL
B SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS NONMAJOR

State Street Solid Wasle Drug UDAG Industrial GOVERNMENTAL
Aid Fund Fund __Fund Development Fund ~ FUNDS
3 272,303 % 0 $ 0 3 0 3 272,303
0 0 0 96,241 96,241

0 0 17,704 0 17,704

0 ¢ 36.750 0 36,750

10,607 (0] 1,909 8,198 20,714

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 72,960 72,950

0 0 o 250 250

282910 0 56,363 177,679 516,952
172,103 0 0 0 172,106

0 319,075 0 0 319,075

0 0 4202 0 4,282

0 10,816 0 0 10,816

0 0 19,050 0 19,050

20,722 0 0 496,905 526,627

0 3,152 0 0 3.152

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 6,937 6.937

201,828 333,043 23,332 503,842 1,062,045
81,082 (333,043) 33,031 (326.163) (545,093)
0 0 0 0 0

0 334,017 0 0 334017

. R 0 0 0
0 334,017 ) —— 334,017

81,082 974 33,031 (326,163) (211,076)

485 694 0 55,566 749,491 1,290,751

$ 566,776 $ 574 $ 88,597 423,328 § 1,079,675



City of Crossville, Tennessee

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
State Street Aid Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

REVENUE
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and costs
Public enterprise revenue
Interest income
Granls
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Street lighling
Capital outlay
Materials and supplies

Tolal expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operaling (ransfers in

Variance with

REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE , beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, end of year

- BUDGET Final Budget
Original Final ____Actual Fav. (Unfavorable)
$ 267635 $ 267638 $ 272,303 $ 4,668
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
8,500 8,500 10,607 2,107
0 0 0 0
- 0 0 0 0
276,135 276,135 282,910 6,775
185,000 185,000 172,106 12,894
515,000 521,000 29,723 491,277
17,635 11,635 0 11,635
717,635 717,635 201,829 515,806
(441,500) (441,500} 81,081 522,581
0 N | 0 )
(441,500) (441,500} 81,081 522,581
485,694 485,694 485,694 0
$ 44,194 $ 44194 ) 566,775 3 522,581

The noles lo the basic financial slatements are an integral part of this statemenl.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET {GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
Solid Waste Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with

BUDGET Final Budget
__ Original ~ Final Actual  Fav. (Unfavorable)

REVENUE

Intergovernmental revenue $ 0 $ c $ o 3 0

Charges for services 150 150 0 (150)

Fines and costs 0 0 0 0

Public enterprise revenue 0 0 0 0

Interesl income 0 0 0 0

Grants 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0

Total revenue 150 150 o 0 o (150)
EXPENDITURES

Collection fees 323,500 323,500 322,227 1,273

Landfili 14,000 14,000 10,816 3,184

Total expenditures 337,500 337.500 333,043 4,457
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE

OVER EXPENDITURES (337,350) (337,350) (333,043) 4,307
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in 337,350 337,350 334,017 (3,333)
REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES 0 0 974 874
FUND BALANCE , beginning of year 0 0 0 0
FUND BALANCE, end of year $ 0 $ 0o $ 974  § 974

The notes lo the basic financial statements are an integral part of this stalement.

60



City of Crossville, Tennessee

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

REVENUE

Inlergovernmenlal revenue

Charges for services
Fines and costs

Public enterprise revenue

Interest income
Donalions--DARE
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
DARE program
Drug enforcement
Capital outlay
Materiis aind supplos

Total expendilures

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operaling transfers in

Drug Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with

REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE , beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, end of year

BUDGET Final Budget
__Original _Final__ _ Actual _ Fav(Unfavorable)
0 Y 0 $ 0 0
0 0 0 0
14,500 14,500 17,704 3.204
20,000 20,000 36,750 16,750
700 700 1,809 1,209
0] 0 0 0
2,200 2,200 0 (2,200)
37,400 37,400 56,363 18,963
7,500 7,500 4,282 3.218
69,500 69,500 18,146 51,354
0 0 0 0
2,500 2,500 904 1,596
79,500 79,500 23,332 56,168
(42,100) (42,100) 33,031 75,131
_______© . 0 0] 0
(42,100) (42,100) 33,031 75,131
55556 55,566 55566 O
$ 13,466 $ 88,597 $ 75,131

The noles to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
UDAG Industrial Development Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with

BUDGET Final Budget
Original Final Actual Fav. (Unfavorable)

REVENUE

Inltergovernmental revenue $ 0 3 0 $ 0 $ 0

Charges for services 25,000 25,000 96,241 71,241

Interest income 0 0 8,198 8,198

Olher income 0 0 250 250

Grants 19,300 19,300 72,990 53,680

Total revenue _ 44300 44,300 177,679 133379
EXPENDITURES

Capital oullay 535,000 535,000 496,905 38,005

Condracluil services 30,000 30,000 6,937 23,063

Tolal expenditures 565,000 565,000 503842 61,158
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE

OVER EXPENDITURES (520,700) (520,700) (326,163) 194,537
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from sale of assets 500,000 500,000 0 ___(500,000)
REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES (20,700) (20,700) (326.163) (305,483)
FUND BALANCE , beginning of year 749,491 749,491 749,491 0
FUND BALANCE, end of year $ 728,791 $ 728,791 $ 423328 §  (305,463)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2005

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doublful accounts
Inventories of materials
Total current assets

Noncurrent assels

Restricted cash

Capital assets
Land
Plant in service
Construction in progress
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Deferred financing cosl
Special assessmenl receivable

Total other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of notes/bond payable
Tolal current labllities
Noncurrent liabilifies
Notes and bonds payable, less current portion
Tolal noncurrent liabililies
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
invested in capital assels, net of related debl
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Enterprise Funds

_Water & Sewer

$ 6,067,704
421,738
789,324
163912

7,442,678

215,473

294,010
53,655,298
882,199
3,491,262
(18,969.988)
45,070
18,186
39,631,510

$ 47,074,188

§ 332,134
92,606
1,365,484
1,790,224

16,320,556
18,110,780

21,666,741
617,639
6,679,028

$ 28,963,408

The noles (0 Ihe basic financial statemenis are an integral part of this statement.
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OPERATING REVENUE
Metered water sales
Sewer services charges
Tap fees
Grinder pump sales and repairs
Rental
Forfeited discount and penalties
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Waler plant
Personnel services
Contractual services
Fixed charges
Supplies
Olher

Total water plant

Water dislribution
Personnel services
Contractual services
Repair and maintenance
Materials and supplies
Olher

Total water distnbulion

Sewer plant and collection
Personnel services
Material and supplies
Contract service
Repair and maintenance
Other

Total sewer plant and colieclion

Sewer rehabilitation

Contract services
Repair and maintenance

Total sewer rehabililation

The notes to he basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS--BUDGET TO ACTUAL
Water and Sewer Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with

BUDGET - Final Budget

Original Final Aclual Fav. (Unfavorable)

$ 3,427,000 $ 3,427,000 $ 3405742 $ (21,258)
1,725,000 1,725,000 1,768,735 44,735
185,000 185,000 246,671 61,671
201,500 201,500 174,979 (26,521)
54,633 54,633 54,633 0
50,250 50,250 39,045 (10,305)
134,400 235,400 338,735 103,335
5,777,783 5,878,783 6,030,440 151,657
591,037 611,140 591,574 19,566
407,650 353,644 289,702 63,942
13,000 13,000 7,630 5,370
158,300 206,730 167,615 39,115

0 - 9,859 (9,859)
1170987 1184514 1,066,380 118,134
325,392 329,457 277,361 52,096
28,300 29,400 11,367 18,033
82,500 77,200 37,350 39,850
28,600 32.900 19.892 13.008

4,350 3,402 540 2,862
469,142 472,359 346,510 125,849
279,494 265,296 193,574 71,722
233,070 249,070 198,634 50,436
851,517 851,517 828,044 23,473
18,500 18,500 5,004 13,496
12,850 11,980 16,089 (4,139)
_1.395,531 1,396,333  __1.241345 154,988
179,606 179,606 179,606 0
30000 45,000 18,802 26.108
209,606 224,606 198,498 26,108




City of Crossville, Tennessee

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS--BUDGET TO ACTUAL
Water and Sewer Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance with

BUDGET Final Budget
Original Final Actual Fav. (Unfavorable)
Caloosa operaling phase
Personnel services 0 99,720 99,582 131
Conlractual services 0 52,645 52.534 11
Supplic: 0 2,445 2,437 8
Total Catoosa operating phase 0] 154,710 154,560 150
General and administrative
Personnel services 149,222 147,867 113,048 34,819
Conlractual services 198,450 180,850 128,887 51,963
Supplies 31,700 10,100 4815 5,285
Other 100,750 132,170 84,075 48,095
Total general and administralive 480122 470,987 330,825 140,162
Depreciation and amorlizalion 1,811,413 1,820,614 1,650,543 170,071
Total operating expenses _ 5,536,801 5,724,123 4,988,661 735,462
OPERATING INCOME 240,982 154,650 1,041,779 887,119
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest expense (660,404) (660,403) (489,202) 171,201
Interestincome 60,000 60,000 153,088 93,088
Tolal nonoperating revenue (expenses) (600,404) (600,403) (336,114) 264,289
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER REVENUES,
SPECIAL ITEMS, AND TRANSFERS (359,422) (445,743) 705,665 1,151,408
Contlributions in aid of construclion 50,000 103,710 520,714 417,004
Transler in 25,000 25,000 21,278 (3.722)
Transler out (94,000) {84,000) (76,544) 17,456
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (378,422) (411,033) 1,171,113 1,082,146
Total Net Assets--beginning of year _ 27,792,295 _ 27,792,295 27792295 0
Tolal Net Assets--end of year $ 27,413,873 $ 27,381,262 $ 28,963,408 5 1,582,146

The noles lo the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statemenl.
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Enterprise Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipls from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Other receipts (paymenls)

Net cash provided by operaling activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Purchases of capital assels
Other receipts (payments)
Conlributions in aid of construction
Net cash provided (used) by capital and financing actities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating transfer to General Fund, net
Net cash (used) by noncapital financing activites

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, beginning of year

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
by aperating activities:
Depreciation & amortization expense
Change in assets and liabilities
Receivables, net
Inventories
Accotints and other payables
Accrued expenses
Nel cash provided by operating aclivities

$ 6,012,861
(2,150.794)
(1,.275.148)

_ (87,033)

2,499,888

138,201
(1,338,877)
(489.202)
(1,079,391)

19,171
520714

_(2.230,384)

_(55,266)
(55,266)

153,088
153,088
367,326
5,915,852

$ 6,283,178

$ 1,041,779

1,563,510

(17,579)
(9,678)

(98,816)
20,672

$ 2,499,888

The notes (o the basoc financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

bb



City of Crossville, Tennessee
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLES
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Exemplions

Balance and Balance
Tax Year June 30, 2004  Tax Levy Collections Abatements  June 30, 2005
2005 $ 0 § 1704719 § 0 $ 0 $ 1,704,719
2004 1.698.824 0 1,640,193 (10,033) 48,598
2003 33,923 0 20,644 591 13.870
2002 23,757 0 14,237 (79) 9,441
2001 10,151 0 £,861 (23) 3,267
2000 11,308 0 6,829 0 4,479
1999 4,679 0 3,350 (7) 1,322
1998 2,440 0 1,127 (6) 1,307
1997 935 0 335 (4) 596
1996 42 0 0 0 42
1995 76 0 0 0 376
1,786,435 1,788,017
Less Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (67,222) . (67.222)
TAXES RECEIVABLE, June 30,2005 $ 1,719,213 § 0 $ 1693576 $ (9.561) § 1,720,795

Delincuent taxes are lurned over to the County Clerk and Master for collection.

The notes 1o the basic financial statement are an integral part of this schedule,
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June 30, 2005
Capital Outlay TML Bond Fund
Note Note 2005 Tolals
Fiscal Year Principal Interest __Principal  Interest  Principal ~ Interest
2006 $ 25000 § 0 & 39.000 34230 3 64,000 $ 34,230
2007 25,000 0 40,000 32,865 65,000 32,865
2008 25,000 0 41,000 31,465 66,000 31,465
2009 25,000 0 43,000 30,030 68,000 30.030
2010 0 0 44,000 28,525 44,000 28,525
2011 0 0 45,000 26,985 45,000 26,985
2012 0 0 46,000 25,410 46,000 25,410
2013 0 0 48,000 23.800 48,000 23.800
2014 0 0 49,000 22,120 48,000 22,120
2015 0 0 51,000 20,405 51,000 20,405
2016 0 0 52,000 18,620 52,000 18,620
2017 0 0 54,000 16,800 54,000 16.800
2018 0 0 56,000 14,910 56,000 14,910
2018 0 0 57,000 12,950 57,000 12,950
2020 0 0 58,000 10,955 59,000 10,955
2021 0 0 61,000 8.890 61,000 8,890
2022 0 0 63,000 8.755 63,000 6,755
2023 0 0 64,000 4,450 64,000 4,550
2024 0 0 66,000 2,310 66,000 2,310
Total ) 100,000 $ 0 $§ 978000 $ 372575 § 1,078,000 $ 372,575

City of Crossville, Tennessee
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

General Obligation Debt

The notes (o the general purpose financial statements are an integral part of this schedule.
purp grail
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City of Crossville, Tennessee
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
Water and Sewer Fund
June 30, 2005

Refunding Bonds General Obligation General Obligation
__ Seres1983  _ Loan-TMBF 1396 __Loan - TMBF 1999 State of TN Loan
Fiscal Year _ Principal _nlarest _Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2006 % 240000 § 13080 S 334,000 § 45039 0§ 196990 8 193,034 § 98,754 8§ 75,088
2007 0 Q 352,500 35,019 206,830 183,184 105,515 68,327
2008 0 0 371.900 24,444 217,180 172,843 112,740 51,102
2004 Q 0 G42,.300 13,287 278,040 161,984 120,460 53,382
2010 Q & 50.GGO 1518 239,440 150,582 125,708 45135
2011 [0} 6 0 ] 251,410 138,610 137,520 36,322
2012 0 0 0 0 263,980 126,039 146,936 26,908
2013 0 0 0 0 277,180 112,840 156,897 16,845
2014 0 0 ] 0 291,040 98,981 140 845 £,095
2015 0 0 0 0 305,580 84,429 0 0
2018 0 0 0 0 320,870 69,150 0 0
2017 0 0 Q 0 336,910 53,1068 0 n
2018 0 0 0 0 353,760 36,281 0 0
201¢ 0 0 { 0 471,450 18,573 0 0
2020 0 0 Q 0 0 0 0 0
2021 0 0 ¢ v 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 Q 0 9] 0 0 0
2023 0 0 4] 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2025 0 0 C ¢ 0 0 0 0
2026 0 0 Q 0 0 q 0 0
2027 Q 0 0 0 0 4] 0 0
2028 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2029 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2030 ¢ (o} 0 0 0 0 0 0
2031 0 0 4] 0 0 0 0 0
2032 0 0 0 0 0 0 o} 0
2033 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 (¢
2034 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6]
2035 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2036 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2037 0 0 0 0 [0} 1 0 ¢
2038 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2039 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4]
2040 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2041 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2042 n 0 a 0o 0 0 0 0

S 240000 § 13,080 § 1501,300 § 119,307 § 3860670 § 1599616 $ 1157475 § _ 389.202

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this schedule.
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Figcal Year
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
20214
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2029
2040
2041

2042

Slale Revolving Fund

City of Crossville, Tennessee
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
Water and Sewer Fund

June 30, 2005

State Revolving Fund

Staie Revolving Fund

The notes to the basic financial stalements are an integral part of this schedule.
gral p

70

00-020 00-033 RUD Loan 01-156 )
~ Principal _ Interest __ Principal Interest __ Principal Interest __Principal ____Interest
S 253,991 $ 43,6924 S 53,729 § 16,740 § 31,232 § 106,984 § 20,620 § 6,588

258,523 89,388 54 525 15,838 32,586 105,630 21,132 6,276
263,136 84,780 55,332 15,132 33,998 104,218 21,444 5,964
267,831 80,076 56,150 14,316 35471 102,745 21,756 5,652
272,611 75,300 56,981 13,488 37.008 101,208 22,080 5.328
277 475 70,440 57,825 12,636 36,612 G9 804 22,404 5,004
282,426 65,484 58,681 11,784 40,285 97,931 22,740 4,668
287,466 60,444 59 549 10,8920 42,031 95,185 23,075 4,332
292,596 55,320 60,430 10,032 43 853 94,363 23,412 3,984
297,817 50,100 61,325 0,144 45,753 92,463 23,760 3.648
303,131 44,784 62,232 8232 47,736 Q0,480 24120 3,288
308,540 39,372 63153 7,308 49,805 88,411 24,468 2,940
314,046 33,864 64,083 6,372 51,063 86,253 24,840 2,568
315650 28,260 65,036 5424 54,215 84,001 25,200 2,208
325,354 22,660 65,999 4,464 56,565 81,651 25572 1,836
331,160 16,752 66,970 3492 59,016 79,200 25,856 1,452
337,069 10,848 67,967 2,496 61,574 76,642 26,340 1,068
343,084 4,836 68,973 1,488 64,242 73,674 26,724 684
85,987 255 654,009 473 67,027 71,189 27120 288
0 0 0 0 69,931 68,285 4,562 8

o] Q0 0 0 72,962 65,254 0 0

0 0 0 0 76,124 62,092 0 0

0 0 0 0 70423 58,793 0 0

0 0 0 0 82 865 55,351 0 0

0 0 0 0 86,456 51,760 0 0

0 0 V] 0 ap 203 48,013 0 0

0 0 0 Q G4 112 44 104 0 0

0 0 0 0 98,191 40,025 0 0

0 0 0 0 102,446 35,770 0 0

0 0 0 0 106,886 31,330 0 0

¢ Q 0 0 111518 26,698 0 0

Q 0 0 0 116,351 21,865 (1] 0

0 0 0 Q 121,394 16,823 0 0

0 0 0 8] 126.654 11,562 0 0

0 0 0 0 132,143 6073 0 0

0 0 a 0 70,848 904 0 Q
0 0 « o 0o 0 0 0
_S__5_.421.893 $ 926,787 $ 1,162,960 S 169,877 §___2.i'3§_1_.<_1_7___£1 §__2,37T.834 § 457528 5 67.784



City of Crossville, Tennessee
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
Water and Sewer Fund
June 30, 2005

Stateof TNLoan Totals
__ Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interast

2006 $ 135068 § 34,720 § 1365484 § 685197
2007 139,602 31,066 1,171,213 534,846
2008 143,332 27,356 1,219,062 495,839
2009 147,162 23,526 1,269170 454 968
2010 151,095 156,553 958,623 412,162
2011 155,132 15,556 940,378 378,172
2012 159,278 11,410 974,326 344,222
2013 163,534 7.154 1,009,833 308,720
2014 182,048 2,784 1,043,224 271,559
2015 0 0 734,245 230,784
2016 o] 0 758,089 215,934
2017 8] 0 752 876 191,137
2018 0 0 808.697 165,318
2015 0 D 536 5514 138,466
2020 0 0 473,490 110,511
2021 0 D 483,108 100,656
2022 0 0 492 950 91,054
2023 0 0 503,023 80,682
2024 0 D 244,143 72,205
2025 0 0 74,493 68,293
2026 0 0 72,962 65,254
2027 0 0 76,124 62,092
2028 0 0 79,423 58,793
2029 0 0 82,8685 55,351
2030 0 0 86,456 51.760
2031 0 0 90,203 48,013
2032 0 0 a4,112 44,104
2033 0 0 98,191 40,025
2034 0 0 102,446 35,770
2035 0 0 106,886 31,330
2036 0 0 111,518 26,698
2037 0 0 116,351 21,865
2038 0 0 121,304 16,823
2039 0 0 126,654 11,562
2040 0 0 132,143 6,073
2041 0 Q 70,848 904
2042 e B B it
$ 1,377,151 § 173185  17.710454 5836672

Less deferred amount on 1efunding ) (24.414) 0

§ 17,686,040 S 5836672

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral parl of this schedule,
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City of Crossville, Tennessee

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS' AND SURETY BONDS

Mayor
City Manager

City Clerk

Cily Finance Director

Council Members

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

100,000
155,000

10.000



Subject of Insurance

Buildings and conlents

General liability

Automobuc: liabilily

Employec Dishonesty

Workmen's compensation

Running surely bond

Equipment

Airport

City of Crossville, Tennessee

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE

June 30, 2005

Type of Coverage.

Fire, hghtning, extended coverage,
80% coinsurance. $1,000 deductible

Comprehensive general & personal
injury liability

Public officials personal
liability (35,000 deduclible)

Bodily injury or personal injury liabilily
Per person
Per occurrence
Property damage
Automobile nhysical damage
Actual cash value
(collision deduclible ranges
up lo $1,000)
Excess auto physical damage
fire department - aggregate

Statutory limits
Employer’s liability

Contracl replacement
Extended coverage (deductible range up
lo $1,000)

Bodily injury and property damage liability

as)
A

Amount of Coveraage

$ 21,858,381

1,000,000
100,000
250,000

600,000
85,000

2,137,000

100.000

600,000

2,500

2,129,039

5,000,000
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STATISTICAL SECTION



City of Crossville, Tennessee
TAX RATES AND ASSESSMENTS
Ten Year Summary

Collections in Year of Levy

Tax Year Assessmerts __Rate  levy Amount Percentage
2005 $ 243,531287 $ 070 § 1,704,719 $ 0 0 00%
2004 242,689,143 0.70 1,688,791 1,640,193 97.12
2003 236,281,000 0.70 1,654,037 1,618,668 97 86
2002 228,255,500 0.60 1,361,574 1,319,769 86.93
2001 188,585,515 0.70 1,321,018 1.283,796 97.18
2000 188,252,571 0.70 1,317,768 1,273,232 96.62
1999 175,403.000 0.70 1,227.821 1,199,275 97.68
1998 172,378,000 0.70 1,206,646 1,171,755 97.141
1997 165.294,463 0.56 925,764 883,178 95.40
1996 121,249,137 0.70 848,599 822,045 96.87



City of Crossville, Tennessee
UTILITY STATISTICAL DATA
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

RATES
Water and Sewer Rates Inside City Limits
First 2,000 gallons - waler $7.38 minimum bill
- sewer $9.00 minimum bill

All over 2,000 gallons - waler $3.69 per 1,000 gallons
- sewer $4.50 per 1,000 gallons

Ullity districts {(except CUD)
Catoosa Ulility District (afler 4/1/05)

Outside City Limits

$9.00 minimum bill
$13.50 minimum bill

$4.50 per 1,000 gallons
$6.75 per 1,000 gallons

$2 49 per 1,000 gallons
$1.00 per 1,000 gallons

NUMBER Of CUSTOMERS AT YEAR'S END

Inside Cily Limits

Water Customers

Residential 3,363
Commercial 970
Induslrial 28
Utinty districl {taps) 0
TOTAL WATER CUSTOMERS ‘}.361_
TOTAL SEWER CUSTOMERS ) 4,206
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Qutside City Limils

2,631
85

2

10

2,728

17



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS



PLEMMONS-JACKSON & ASSOCIATES, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Council Members
Crossville, Tennesses

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental aclivities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cily of
Crossville, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which coliectively
comprise City of Crossville, Tennessee's basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated October 19, 2005, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the Uniled Stales of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States.

Inlernal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Crossville, Tennessee's
internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial slatements and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over
financial reporting would not necessarily disclose: all matters in the internal control that might
be material weaknesses. A malerial weakness is a repoitable condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components dees not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that misstatements caused by error fraud in amounis that would be material
in relation to the financial statemenls being audited may occur and not be detecled within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noled no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that
we consider to be malerial weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cily of Crossville, Tennessee’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and malerial effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
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our tests disclosed no inslances of noncompliance or other malters thal are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information of the City of Crossville, Tennessee
management, {ederel awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Do Qocbsont D, FKEC

Plemmons-Jacksdn & Associales, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants

Crossville, Tennessece
October 19, 2005
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